
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
CITY COUNCIL 

ORGANIZATIONAL AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

4:30 PM 
 

1. Call To Order – Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza 

2. Roll Call  

3. Invocation – Joe Comer, Horizon Church 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Oath of Office – Administered by the Honorable Judge Alan King 

a. Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza  

b. John Henley, Council, Place Number 1 

c. Jim Sharp, Council, Place Number 2 

d. Steve Ammons, Council, Place Number 3 

e. George Pierce, Council, Place Number 4 

6. Election Of Mayor Pro-Tem  

7. Resolution Number 4355 – Appointment Of City Attorney  

8. Resolution Number 4356 – Appointment Of Municipal Judge  

9. Resolution Number 4357 – Appointment Of Municipal Prosecutor  

10. Resolution Number 4358 – Appointment Of  City Clerk  

11. Resolution Number 4359 – Appointment Of City Treasurer 

12. Oath of Office – Administered by the Honorable Judge Alan King 

a. Oath of Office – City Manager, City Clerk, City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, 

Municipal Judge, City Attorney 

13. Ordinance Number 2419 - An Ordinance To Establish The Time, Place And 

Procedure For Council Meetings 

14. Motion to adjourn into regular business meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
CITY COUNCIL 

AMENDED AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 5, 2012 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call To Order – Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza 

2. Roll Call 

3. Announcements, Candidates, Guest Recognition 

a. Library Board Vacancy 

b. Park and Recreation Board Vacancy 

4. City Manager’s Report 

5. Mayor/Council Reports 

6. Approval Of Minutes – Regular Meeting – October 22, 2012 

Old Business: 

7. Resolution Number 4351 - A Resolution Approving A Change Order In An 
Agreement With Landscape Workshop For Median Landscaping On US 31 (public 
hearing) 

8. Resolution Number 4353 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter 
Into An Agreement For Construction Engineering And Inspection (CE&I) Services 
With Gresham Smith and Partners On ALDOT Project Number SRTS-SR09(914) 
And STPBH-CN10(908) (public hearing) 

9. Ordinance Number 2315-A – An Ordinance Amending Section 3(C) Of Ordinance 
Number 2315 Regarding Issue Fees (public hearing) 

New Business: 

10. Resolution Number 4354 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Magic 

City Dance Enterprises, LLC D/B/A Magic City Ballroom; Michael Fowler, 

Executive (public hearing) 

11. Resolution Number 4366 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 2377 And 

Providing For The Appointment Of A Safety Coordinator For Employees Of The City 

Of Vestavia Hills 

12. Resolution Number 4360 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At National Bank of Commerce for Capital Projects Reserve and Money 

Market Reserve Accounts 



13. Resolution Number 4361 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At Pinnacle Bank for the Library Account 

14. Resolution Number 4362 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At Regions for the Court Bond 

15. Resolution Number 4363 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At Regions Bank for Special Court Account, Pooled Cash and Payroll 

Account 

16. Resolution Number 4364 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At Southpoint Bank for Contractors Surety Account, Warrant Funds Account 

and Library Capital Projects Fund Account 

17. Resolution Number 4365 – A Resolution Changing City Officials Designated To Sign 

Checks At Wells Fargo Bank for the Transport Account 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

18. Resolution Number 4368 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter 

Into An Agreement With Trane U.S. Inc., D/B/A Trane For Servicing The HVAC 

System At The Library In The Forest (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2420 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Directing The Purchasing 

And Closing Of The Sale Of Real Estate (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action to be Taken at this Meeting) 

20. Resolution Number 4367 – A Resolution Appropriating Matching Funds For ADECA 

Grant Entitled Land And Water Conservation Fund – Little Shades Creek Bridge – 1 

(public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 4369 – A Resolution Enjoining The Cooperation Of The City Of 

Mountain Brook With Street And Drainage Improvements To East Street  

22. Citizen Comments  

23. Executive Session 

24. Adjourn 



Resolution Number 4355 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4355 

 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING PATRICK H. 

BOONE AS THE CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, as follows: 
 
 (1) That Patrick H. Boone is hereby appointed as City 

Attorney for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
and 

 
 (2) That said appointment shall be effective November 

5, 2012. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4356 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4356 

 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING THOMAS SPINA AS 

THE MUNICIPAL JUDGE FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, as follows: 
 
 (1) That Thomas Spina is hereby appointed as 

Municipal Judge for the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama; and 

 
 (2) That said appointment shall be effective November 

5, 2012. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4357 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4357 

 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MICHAEL TRUCKS 

AS THE CITY PROSECUTOR FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, as follows: 
 
 (1) That Michael Trucks is hereby appointed as City 

Prosecutor for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
and 

 
 (2) That said appointment shall be effective November 

5, 2012. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4358 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4358 

 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING REBECCA 

LEAVINGS AS CITY CLERK FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, as follows: 
 
 (1) That Rebecca Leavings is hereby appointed as City 

Clerk for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 
 
 (2) That said appointment shall be effective November 

5, 2012. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4359 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4359 

 
 A RESOLUTION APPOINTING MELVIN TURNER 

III AS THE CITY TREASURER FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, as follows: 
 
 (1) That Melvin Turner III is hereby appointed as City 

Treasurer for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 
and 

 
 (2) That said appointment shall be effective November 

5, 2012. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2419 

 
 TO ESTABLISH THE TIME AND PLACE FOR REGULAR CITY 

COUNCIL MEETINGS; THE PROCEDURE FOR CALLING 
SPECIAL MEETINGS; ESTABLISH A QUORUM; ESTABLISH 
CONDUCT AND PROCEDURES FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS OF 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; REPEALING 
ORDINANCE 1889. 

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

in session duly assembled and by authority thereof as follows: 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

 SECTION 1. That the rules or order of procedure herein contained shall govern 

deliberations and meetings of the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 

 SECTION 2. Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held on the second 

and fourth Mondays of each month at five o’clock (5:00) PM in the Council Chambers at 

Vestavia Hills Municipal Center.  In the event that a regular meeting falls on a holiday or 

the first day of Spring Break, in such an event, the Council shall pass a resolution to set a 

new time and date for said hearing.  The Council may, at the discretion of the presiding 

officer, call a work session on the Thursday preceding any regular meeting of the City 

Council beginning at 4:30 PM; notice for said work session shall be posted not less than 

24 hours prior to the work session as provided in the Open Meetings Act. 

SPECIAL MEETINGS 

 SECTION 3. Special meetings may be held at the call of the presiding officer by 

serving notice on each member of the Council not less than twenty four hours before the 

time set for such special meetings; or special meetings may be held as provided by 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 2 

 
Section 11-43-50, of the Alabama Code, 1975, whenever two Council members, or the 

mayor request, in writing, that the presiding officer call such meeting.  Upon the failure 

or refusal of the presiding officer to call such meeting when requested, the two Council 

members making the request shall have the right to call such meeting.  Only those items 

of business for which the special meeting is convened shall be voted upon at said special 

meeting.  All written notice shall state the specific purpose or purposes for such special 

meetings. 

PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 SECTION 4. All meetings of the City Council shall be open and public, except 

when the Council meets in executive session as authorized by state law. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 SECTION 5. The Council may meet in executive session only for those 

purposes authorized by state law.  When a Council member makes a motion to go into 

executive session for an enumerated purpose, the presiding officer shall put the motion to 

a vote.  If the Council shall unanimously vote in favor of the motion, the body shall then 

move into executive session to discuss the matter for which the executive session was 

called.  No action may be taken in an executive session.  When the discussion has been 

completed, the Council shall resume its deliberations in public. 

QUORUM 

 SECTION 6. The attendance of three members of the City Council, at any 

regular or special meeting, is necessary to constitute a quorum. 

 SECTION 7. Every officer, whose duty it is to report at the regular meetings of 

the Council, who shall be in default thereof, may be fined at the discretion of the Council. 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 3 

 
AGENDA 

 SECTION 8. Any person, firm, partnership, corporation, association or other 

entity with business or applications to present to the City Council at a regular meeting 

must first make application with the City Clerk by noon on the Wednesday preceding the 

City Council meeting on the following Monday.  The purpose of such applications is to 

provide the public and members of the City Council with advance notice of the 

presentation and to afford them the opportunity to study and investigate the matter prior 

to the meeting.   General comments from the public are invited at the end of each 

meeting. 

 The City Council may waive the requirement of such applications in cases of 

emergency or when the public interest may require it; provided, however, that such 

waiver shall be approved by a majority vote of those City Council members present at the 

meeting. 

 All items of a general or permanent nature or that includes the expenditure of 

unbudgeted funds shall be announced at a first reading and heard at the next regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Council or shall be approved by a unanimous consent vote of 

the City Council members present prior to the commencement of said item of business. 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 SECTION 9. The order of business shall be as follows: 

 1. A call to order. 

 2. Roll call. 

 3. Invocation and pledge of allegiance. 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 4 

 
 4. Announcements, and special recognitions. 

 5. Presentations 

 6. City Manager Reports 

 7. Mayor/Councilor Reports 

 8. Financial Reports – Finance Director/City Treasurer 

 9. Approval of minutes of prior meeting(s) 

 10. Resolutions, ordinances and orders of old business 

 11. Resolutions, ordinances and orders of new business 

 12.  First Reading; Notice of Public Hearing 

 13. Comments from public 

 14. Motion for Adjournment  

 

MOTIONS 

SECTION 10. 

A. Motions shall be reduced to writing when required by the presiding officer or any 

other member of the City Council. 

B. No member shall speak on the same motion or subject without permission of the 

presiding officer. 

C. No person, not a member of the City Council, shall be allowed to address the 

same while in session without permission of the presiding officer. 

D. Motions to reconsider must be made by a member of the City Council who voted 

with the majority, and at the same or next succeeding meeting of the City 

Council. 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 5 

 
E. A roll call vote shall be taken for each vote taken by the City Council and the vote 

(“yeas” and “nays”) of each member shall be recorded; and any member 

may call for a division of the questions. 

 

RULES OF ORDER 

SECTION 11. 

A. All questions of order shall be decided by the presiding officer of the City 

Council with the right to appeal to the City Council by any members. 

B  The presiding officer of the City Council may, at his discretion, call any member 

to take the chair, to allow him to address the City Council, make a motion 

to discuss any other matter of issue. 

C. Unless otherwise stated, the latest edition of “Robert’s Rules of Order” shall 

govern the conduct of the meetings of the City Council. 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

SECTION 12. 

A. All ordinances and resolutions shall be in writing. 

B. No ordinance or resolution intended to be of permanent operation shall be 

adopted by the City Council at the same meeting which it is introduced, 

unless unanimous consent of those present is given for the immediate 

consideration of such ordinance or resolution, such consent to be shown 

by a vote taken by yeas and nays, and the names of the members voting 

shall be entered upon the minutes, and no ordinances or resolutions 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 6 

 
intended to be of permanent operation shall become a law, unless on its 

final passage of a majority of the members elected to said City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall vote in its favor. 

C. All ordinances, resolutions or propositions submitted to the City Council which 

require the expenditure of funds shall lie over until the next regular 

meeting; provided, that such ordinances, resolutions may be considered 

earlier by unanimous consent of the City Council; and provided further, 

that this rule shall not apply to the current expenses of, or contracts 

previously made with, or regular salaries of officers, or wages of 

employees of the city or for previously budgeted items. 

D. All ordinances and resolutions intended to be of permanent operation shall be 

subject to the laws of the State of Alabama regarding veto of ordinances 

and resolutions and passage over veto as specifically set forth in Titles 11-

45-3 and 11-45-4, et. seq., Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 

AMENDMENT OF RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 SECTION 13. The procedural rules of the City Council may be altered, amended 

or temporarily suspended if a majority of the members of the City Council present at the 

meeting shall vote in favor to do so. 

 SECTION 14. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared severable.   If 

any provision or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such 

provision or portion shall be deemed a separate and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder thereof. 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 7 

 
 

ATTENDANCE OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 

 SECTION 15. The following Department Heads and such other officers, 

employees and representatives of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall attend all 

meetings of the City Council and shall remain in the Council Room for such length of 

time as the City Council or Mayor may direct: 

A. City Manager 

B. City Clerk 

C. City Treasurer 

D. City Attorney 

All other Department Heads, officers, employees and representatives of the City 

of Vestavia Hills shall attend at the request of the Mayor and/or City Council or when 

said Department Head has business or a request to be presented to the City Council. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 SECTION 16. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption.  Any and all resolutions and ordinances, which are contrary to or 

in conflict with the terms and provisions of the Ordinance Number 2248, are hereby 

rescinded and repealed. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Ordinance Number 2419 
Page 8 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2419 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 5th day of November, 2012, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center and the New Merkle House this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

OCTOBER 22, 2012 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Council President called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with 
the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve Ammons, Council President  
      Jim Sharp, President Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
 Invocation was given by Ron Higey, Birmingham International Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUESTS 
 

• Pat Thetford, candidate for Circuit Judge, Place Number 13, introduced himself 
and asked for support in the November election. 

• Mr. Ammons announced that the Council is accepting applications for an 
upcoming vacancy on the Park and Recreation Board.  He indicated that 
applications will be received in the Office of the City Clerk through November 
15, 2012 at 5 PM, central time.  He encouraged anyone who can “stay engaged” 
to apply. 

• Mayor Zaragoza announced that the Council is accepting applications for an 
upcoming vacancy on the Library Board.  He indicated that applications will be 
received in the Office of the City Clerk through November 15, 2012 at 5 PM, 
central time.  He encouraged everyone interested to apply. 

 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 2 
 

 
MAYOR’S REPORTS 

 
• Viva Vestavia Hills will be held at Hollywood Pool and Spa on November 1, 

2012 beginning at 6 PM.  Mayor Zaragoza stated that this is a wonderful annual 
event and encouraged everyone to attend. 

• There will be a Veteran’s Day Celebration on November 12, 2012 at the 
MountainTop Church beginning at 6 PM.  Keynote speakers include Ret. Lt. Col. 
John Pickler and Ret. Capt. Matt Bacik. 

• The Mayor reminded everyone that on November 5, 2012 the City’s form of 
government will change over to a Council-Manager form of government.  He 
stated that the organizational meeting will be held on that day beginning at 4:30 
PM with the regular meeting to follow.  The regular meeting was changed from 
November 12 to November 5 to coincide with the organizational meeting. 

 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Robertson introduced Carin Mayo and Andrew Russell, the City’s two newest 
interns.  He stated that the City has formally contracted with UAB Master’s 
program for these individuals who will be working 15 to 20 hours per week to 
complete their internships. 

• The Highway 31 Corridor Redevelopment Study will hold a stakeholders meeting 
and later public hearings to introduce and explain the plan. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Ammons stated that the Park and Recreation Board is beginning to take on its 
long-range plan.  

• The Council and the Department Heads met in an off-site retreat last weekend and 
each department updated the Council on future visions and needs of his respective 
department. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the City’s financial reports for month ending September 
2012 (preliminary report).  He read and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the October 8, 2012 (Regular Meeting) were presented for 
approval.   
 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the October 8, 2012 
(regular meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Sharp.  Voice vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2418 

Ordinance Number 2418 - An Ordinance Regulating Soliciting, Peddling And 
Panhandling In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 2418 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 The Mayor gave a brief background over the development of this proposed 
ordinance to hopefully control some of the door-to-door solicitation in the City. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the proposed ordinance and believes it is 
compliant with both state and federal laws. 
 
 Ms. Leavings and Corporal Shane Ware explained the provisions and 
requirements of the ordinance and answered questions from the Council. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 The following individuals addressed the Council relative to the proposed 
ordinance: 

• Cheryl Cobb, resident; 
• Fred Moss, 2713 Countrywood Way; and 
• Terri Williams, AT&T representative. 

 
 There being no others present to address the Council concerning this Resolution, 
Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 4 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4315 

Resolution Number 4315 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 4025 And 4045 Meadowview Circle 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4315 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Christopher Brady explained the repairs needed on the drainage system on this 
property and indicated that the Council has details in its packets concerning the materials 
and labor required. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained his opinion for work that is done on private property and 
indicated that the Council has to find a public purpose is served by completing the 
repairs.  
 
 Mr. Brady indicated that if the repairs are not done, the storm water will increase 
and back up into the public rights-of-way which can cause a hazard to any passing 
motorist or pedestrian. 
 
 The Council deliberated on the request and concurred that there is a public 
purpose in authorizing the repairs on the property. 
 
 The property owners were present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4316 

Resolution Number 4316 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 1317 Parliament Lane And 1901 Balfour Drive 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4316 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Christopher Brady explained the repairs needed on the drainage system on this 
property and indicated that the Council has details in its packets concerning the materials 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 5 
 

and labor required.  He indicated that if the repairs are not done, the pipes will continue 
to separate and cause siltation and problems on properties located downstream. 
 
 The Council deliberated on the request and concurred that there is a public 
purpose in authorizing the repairs on the property. 
 
 The property owners were present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4317 

Resolution Number 4317 – A Resolution To Perform Drainage Repair And 
Improvements At 1804 And 1808 Glendmere Drive 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4317 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Christopher Brady explained the repairs needed on the drainage system on this 
property and indicated that the Council has details in its packets concerning the materials 
and labor required.  He indicated that if the repairs are not done, the pipes will continue 
to separate and cause siltation and problems on properties located downstream. 
 
 The Council deliberated on the request and concurred that there is a public 
purpose in authorizing the repairs on the property but placed a caveat that if a tree is 
causing the problem, the City Engineer will secure a written waiver from the adjacent 
property owner that if the tree is found to be the problem, that it will be removed with 
Mr. Huie paying all costs associated with the tree removal. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a motion for the amendment to the Resolution. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4317 to require the City Engineer to 

secure a written waiver from the adjacent property owner that if the tree is 
the problem causing the separation of the pipes, that it will be removed 
and Mr. Huie pay all costs associated with the removal of the tree prior to 
any repair work commencing on the property was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 6 
 

Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 The property owners were present in regard to the request. 
 
 Mr. Ammons opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this Resolution, Mr. Ammons closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of 
November 5, 2012 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4351 - A Resolution Approving A Change Order In An 
Agreement With Landscape Workshop For Median Landscaping On US 31 

• Resolution Number 4352 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An 
Agreement For Construction Engineering And Inspection (CE&I) Services With 
BECC On ALDOT Project Number SRTS-SR09(914) 

• Resolution Number 4353 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor To Enter Into An 
Agreement For Construction Engineering And Inspection (CE&I) Services With 
Gresham Smith and Partners On ALDOT Project Number SRTS-SR09(914) And 
STPBH-CN10(908) 

• Ordinance Number 2315-A – An Ordinance Amending Section 3(C) Of Ordinance 
Number 2315 Regarding Issue Fees 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
October 22, 2012, 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:40 PM was by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. Henley 
seconded the motion.  Voice vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Steve Ammons 
      Council President 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4351 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4351 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ISSUE A CHANGE ORDER TO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
LANDSCAPE WORKSHOP FOR LANDSCAPING SERVICES ON 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY MEDIAN 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 14, 2012, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4299 to authorize the Mayor to enter into an 

agreement with Landscape Workshop to sod certain portions of the median of 

Montgomery Highway from Southwood Road to Old Creek Trail reserving certain 

portions of median for future landscaping to be completed during the fall; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer has determined the time for the best planting 

results has arrived and has detailed the remaining landscaping in a memorandum dated 

October 16, 2012, the change order in an amount not to exceed $22,000; a copy of which 

is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4351 as if written fully 

therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

complete the landscaping required for the median of Montgomery Highway. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a change order with 

Landscape Workshop to complete the areas of landscaping needed on 

Montgomery Highway pursuant to the details outlined in the above referenced 

memorandum at an amount not to exceed $22,000; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4351 shall be effective immediately following 

adoption and approval. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



Resolution Number 4351 
Page 2 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
      APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 





RESOLUTION NUMBER 4353 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION 
ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION (CE&I) SERVICES ON 
ALDOT PROJECT NUMBERS SRTS-SR09(914) AND STPBH-
CN10(908) VESTAVIA HILLS SIDEWALKS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into agreements for 

construction, engineering and inspection (CE&I) services on ALDOT project 

numbers SRTS-SR09(914) and STPBH-CN10(908), Vestavia Hills 

Sidewalks, BECC and Gresham Smith and Partners at an estimated cost not to 

exceed $143,000 ; and 

2. A copy of the agreements are attached and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4353 as if written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4353 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of 

November, 2012. 

 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

OFFICE OF CITY ENGINEER 
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMO 

 
 
October 17,  2012 
 
To: Rebecca Leavings 
CC: Mayor Zaragoza, City Manager Robertson, B.Davis 
From: Christopher Brady 
RE: Construction Engineering and Inspection services for sidewalk construction 
  
 
Becky, 
 

I am requesting approval of an additional expenditure to complete construction of the current sidewalk 
projects.  This includes STPBH – Canyon and Merryvale, and SRTS – Eastwood, PostOak, and Willoughby.  The 
construction of these projects is roughly 75% complete as of mid‐October.  Canyon and Eastwood are 
substantially complete.  There are areas along Post Oak and Merryvale that are incomplete.  Activity on 
Willoughby is anticipated to begin soon. 
 
The additional funding needed at this time includes cost to cover CE&I services to be performed by Gresham, 
Smith and Partners and Birmingham Engineering and Construction Consultants.  See Supplemental Agreements 
attached.  To summarize these costs,  

GSP  BECC  potential City cost 

SRTS   $                  29,421.00   $         42,972.12   $    72,393.12  

STPBH*   $                  57,743.00   incl    $    11,548.60  

*subject to reimbursement of upto 80% by ALDOT agreement 

 $    83,941.72  

allowance(15%)   $    12,591.26  

 $    96,532.98  
I have included an allowance to offset potential approximated costs that may not be covered in the current 
ALDOT agreement.  I am in the process of exploring potential to expand ALDOT agreement to cover this cost. 
 
I am requesting additional expenditure of approximately $97,000 to cover the cost of this project overrun. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 
  ‐Christopher 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 26, 2012 
 
 
 
Mr. Christopher Brady 
City Engineer 
Vestavia Hills Public Works  
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Birmingham, Alabama 35216 
 
 
Subject: Proposal for Additional Construction Materials Testing Services 
  For Vestavia Hills Sidewalks 
  ALDOT Project Number SRTS-SR09(914) 
  Eastwood Road, Post Oak Road and Willoughby Road 
  Vestavia Hills, Alabama  
  BECC Proposal Number:  Q1-12031rr 
 
 
Dear Mr. Brady: 
 
Birmingham Engineering and Construction Consultants, Inc. (BECC) appreciates the 
opportunity to submit our proposal for call-out construction materials testing services for the 
subject project.  BECC is a certified testing laboratory with certifications from several 
independent national organizations and we meet the requirements of ASTM E 548.  Our 
technicians and inspectors are certified in materials testing by ACI, NICET, AWS, FAA and 
ALDOT.  BECC is also a certified woman-owned small business (DBE) with the ALDOT. 
Based on our knowledge of the project, we anticipate the following inspection and testing may be 
required: 
 
• Compaction Testing/ Proofrolling  
 
• Concrete Testing 
 
• ALDOT Inspector Services 
 



  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

This proposal is for the purpose of expanding BECC original scope of services and schedule for 
the subject project.  We understand that the project will consist of sidewalks and crosswalk 
additions to the City of Vestavia Hills in Alabama.  The project is funded under a grant by the 
Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT).  The areas include Vestavia Hills East, West 
and Central Elementary Schools and Cahaba Heights Elementary School.  The sidewalks will be 
constructed along Eastwood Road, Post Oak Road and Willoughby Road.    
BECC will be responsible for construction materials testing that will primarily include concrete 
testing.  All testing procedures will be to ALDOT and ASTM guidelines.  We have estimated that 
the total duration for the additional services is approximately 75 days.  Depending on the 
contractor’s schedule, the actual time may vary. 
 
 

UNIT RATES AND TERMS 
 
We have provided our unit rates and estimated budget on the attached Exhibit “A”.  The 
remaining budget as of February 1, 2012 was subtracted from the proposed amount.  This budget 
was based upon the contractors anticipated schedule and may need to be revised once the project 
is underway.  BECC will use these rates to complete the above Scope of Services.  The attached 
rates are for call-out construction materials testing services for this project and do not include 
engineering consultation or investigation services unless otherwise requested.   
For services contracted on a call-out basis, the client or his authorized field representative is 
responsible for requesting and coordinating our services.  BECC cannot assume any 
responsibility for work not tested due to inadequate instructions, or notification by client.  
Construction monitoring is not insurance, nor does it constitute a warranty or guarantee of any 
type.  The test results are reported to and for the specific use of the client and may not be relied 
upon by any third party.      
 



  

 
CLOSING 

 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue our good working relationship with you on this 
project.  We have attached a copy of our Terms and Conditions and if acceptable, please execute 
the last page of the Terms and Conditions and fax it back to me.    
 
Our primary objective is to provide the necessary services in the most efficient manner to verify 
specification compliance.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not 
hesitate to contact our office.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Birmingham Engineering & Construction Consultants, Inc. 

 
Martin T. Burford, P.E.      
Vice President        



Personnel Work Days Hours/Day Hourly Cost Total
Inspector/ Technicians -Field and Lab (ALDOT Concrete Certified) 75.00 8.00 22.00$             13,200.00$                                 
Inspector/ Technicians -Field and Lab (ALDOT Concrete Certified)-OT 0.00 0.00 33.00$             -$                                           
Project Engineer, PE - Report Review/Proj Management 75.00 0.25 27.89$             522.94$                                      
Administrative 0.00 0.25 14.00$             -$                                           

 13,722.94$                                 
Combined Overhead (%) 169.05 23,198.63$                                 

 170 Sub-Total 36,921.56$                                 
Other Costs Quantity Units Unit Cost Total
Concrete Cylinders (42 sets of 4 cylinders) 168 cylinders 8.00$               1,344.00$                                   
Mileage 1600 miles 0.50$               800.00$                                      

 Sub-Total 2,144.00$                                   

Operating Margin (10%) 3,906.56$                                   
Facilities Cost of Capital- FCC (%) 2.53 347.19$                                      

 ESTIMATED FEE 42,972.12$                                 

Notes:

Minimum call-out time is 4 hours for all field technicians.
All personnel rates are charged portal-to-portal.
Overtime will be charged at a rate of 1.5 times the hourly rate for any hours worked over 8 per working day, over 40 hours per working week, 
before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., and any hours worked on Saturdays or Sundays.  National Holidays will be billed at 2 time the prorated hourly rate.

October 1, 2012

Fee Proposal for

                                      Total Direct Labor

This budget was based upon an anticipated schedule of 75 workdays by the contractor.  The contractor anticipates that Willoughby will be 45 days, 5 days 
for Post Oak, 10 days for Eastwood ramps, 10 days for punch list items and approximatly 5 days for closeout services.

ALDOT Project Nos. SRTS-SR09(914)
VESTAVIA HILLS SIDEWALKS

Construction Materials Testing and Inspection Services
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

BECC Proposal Nos. Q1-12031rrr

EXHIBIT "A"



 1 

 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES  The scope of Birmingham Engineering & Construction Consultants, Inc. (BECC)’s services is described in the Scope of 
Services section of the Proposal (“Services”), unless Services are otherwise described in Exhibits to this Agreement (which section of exhibit is 
incorporated into this Agreement).  BECC’s services do not include the investigation or detection of, nor do recommendations in BECC’s reports 
address occupant safety issues, such as vulnerability to natural disasters, terrorism, or violence.  If Services include purchase of software, Client will 
execute a separate software license agreement.  BECC’s findings, opinions, and recommendations are based solely upon data and information 
obtained by and furnished to BECC at the time of the Services. 
ACCEPTANCE  Client agrees that execution of our General Terms and Conditions is a material element of the consideration BECC requires to 
execute the Services, and if Services are initiated by BECC prior to execution of our General Terms and Conditions as an accommodation for Client, 
at Client’s request, both parties shall consider that commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of all terms and conditions of this 
agreement.  Additional terms and conditions may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties.  In the 
event Client uses a purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any 
additional conflicting terms it contains are stricken.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other 
party. 
RIGHT OF ENTRY AND SAFETY  The Client will provide access to and make all provisions for right of entry of Birmingham Engineering 
& Construction Consultants, Inc. (BECC) and all necessary equipment in order to perform the work.  While BECC will take all reasonable 
precautions to minimize any damage to the property, it is understood by Client that in the normal course of work some damage may occur, the 
correction of which is not part of this Agreement.  BECC will be responsible for supervision and site safety measures for its own employees, but shall 
not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety precautions for any other parties, including Client, Client’s contractors, subcontractors, or 
other parties present at the site. 
SAMPLING OR TEST LOCATION  Unless otherwise stated, the fees in this proposal do not include costs associated with surveying of the 
site for the accurate horizontal and vertical locations of tests. Field tests or boring locations described in our report or shown on sketches are based 
upon information furnished by others or estimates made in the field by our representatives. Such dimensions, depths or elevations should be 
considered as approximations unless otherwise stated.  If the Client specifies the test or boring location, we reserve the right to deviate a reasonable 
distance from the location specified.  BECC reserves the right to terminate this contract if site conditions prevent drilling at or near the designated 
boring locations and these conditions were not revealed to us prior to submitting this proposal.  If, in order to complete the borings to their designated 
depths, a redrilling is necessitated by encountering impenetrable subsurface objects, these services will be charged for at the appropriate rates in the 
fee schedule. 
UTILITIES In the prosecution of this work, BECC will take all reasonable precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or 
utilities.  The Client agrees to hold BECC harmless for any damages to subterranean structures which are not specifically called to BECC’s attention 
in writing and correctly shown on the plans furnished. 
SAMPLES  BECC will retain all soil and rock samples for 30 days.  Further storage or transfer of samples can be made at the Owner’s expense 
upon written request.   
INVOICES/PAYMENT Client’s payment for goods or services to be performed shall be set forth in this Agreement unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing by BECC.  If not stated in Agreement, fees will be in accordance with BECC’s current fee schedule.  BECC’s fees are valid for the calendar 
year in which they are issued.  BECC will submit invoices to client monthly and a final bill upon completion of services. Invoices will show charges 
for different personnel and expense classifications. A more detailed separation of charges and back-up data will be provided at client’s request, with 
an administrative charge of $50.00 per invoice being levied.  Payment is due upon presentation of invoice and is past due thirty (30) days from 
invoice date. Client agrees to pay a finance charge of one and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month, or the maximum rate allowed by law, on past due 
accounts. Any attorney fees, collection fees or costs related or incurred in the collection of any past due amount shall be paid by Client.  Both parties 
agreed that the attorneys’ fees will be at least 33% of the amount owed.  BECC can suspend Services for lack of timely payment. 
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS  All reports, boring logs, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates, and other 
documents prepared by BECC, as instruments of service, shall remain the property of BECC.  Furthermore, all of these documents constitute 
proprietary information and shall be held in confidence by the Client.  Client agrees that all reports and other work furnished to the Client or his 
agent, which is not paid for, will be returned upon demand and will not be used by the Client for any purpose whatever.   
THIRD PARTY RELIANCE  This Agreement and the Services provided are for BECC and Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use with no third 
party beneficiaries intended.  Reliance upon the Services and any work product is limited to Client, and is not intended for third parties.  For a limited 
time period not to exceed three months from the date of the report, BECC will issue additional reports to others agreed upon with Client, however, 
Client understands that such reliance will not be granted until those parties sign and return BECC’s reliance agreement and BECC receives the 
agreed-upon reliance fee. 
STANDARD OF CARE/WARRANTY  Service performed by BECC under this Agreement will be conducted in a manner consistent with that 
level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions. No other warranty, express or 
implied, is made. BECC makes no warranties or guarantees express or implied, relating to BECC’s services and BECC disclaims any implied 



 2 

warranties or warranties imposed by law, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. 
PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT  A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) is limited to a historical search of 
the property’s past usage, a review of the present use of the property, including a site reconnaissance, and a review of applicable Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and the state regulatory authority listings for record of regulated facilities adjacent to the subject site.  The Client should 
limit his conclusions and use of the report issued by Birmingham Engineering & Construction Consultants, Inc. (BECC) to the degree of the scope of 
the work performed.  BECC does not assume any liability for loss or damage that may occur as a result of the Client’s or any third party’s use of 
BECC’s report. 
SUBSURFACE RISKS  Client recognizes that special risks occur whenever engineering or related disciplines are applied to identify subsurface 
conditions.  Even a comprehensive sampling and testing program, implemented with the appropriate equipment and experienced personnel under the 
direction of a trained professional who functions in accordance with a professional standard of care may fail to detect certain conditions such as 
sinkholes, underground mines, caverns, rock, water, unstable soil, hazardous materials, etc., because they are hidden and therefore cannot be 
considered in development of a subsurface exploration program.  For similar reasons, actual environmental, geologic and geotechnical conditions that 
BECC properly infers to exist between sampling points may differ significantly from those that actually exist.  The passage of time also must be 
considered, and Client recognizes that, due to natural occurrence or other direct or indirect human intervention at the site or distant from it, actual 
conditions discovered may quickly change.  Client realizes that nothing can be done to eliminate these risks altogether.  BECC is available to explain 
these risks and risk reduction methods to Client, but, in any event, the scope of services included with this proposal is that which Client agreed to or 
selected in light of his own risk preferences and other considerations.  Accordingly, Client waives any claim against BECC, and agrees to defend, 
indemnify and save BECC harmless from any claims or liability for injury or loss that may arise from failure to detect adverse subsurface conditions 
that impact the project. 
AQUIFER CONTAMINATION  Subsurface sampling may result in unavoidable contamination of certain subsurface areas, as when a probe or 
boring device moves through a contaminated area, linking it to an aquifer, underground stream, or other hydrous body not previously contaminated 
and capable of spreading hazardous materials off-site.  Because nothing can be done to eliminate the risk of such an occurrence, and because 
subsurface sampling is a necessary aspect of the work which BECC will perform on Client’s behalf, Client waives any claim against BECC, and 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss which may arise as a result of alleged cross-
contamination caused by sampling.  Client further agrees to compensate BECC for any time spent or expenses incurred by BECC’s prevailing fee 
schedule and expense reimbursement policy. 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES AND CONSTITUENTS  Client agrees to advise BECC in writing upon execution of this Agreement of any 
hazardous substances or any condition existing in, on, or near the site presenting a potential danger to human health, the environment, or equipment.  
Client agrees to provide to BECC continuing information of hazardous conditions or substances as this information becomes available to the 
Client/Owner.  By virtue of entering into this Agreement or of providing services hereunder, BECC does not assume control of, or responsibility for, 
the site or the person in charge of the site, or undertake responsibility for reporting to any federal, state or local public agencies any conditions at the 
site that may present a potential danger to public health, safety or the environment.  Client agrees to notify the appropriate federal, state or local 
public agencies as required by law, or otherwise to disclose, in a timely manner, any information that may be necessary to prevent any danger to 
health, safety, or the environment.  In connection with hazardous waste, Client/Owner agrees to the maximum extent permitted by law to defend, 
hold harmless and indemnify BECC from and against any and all claims and liabilities resulting from: 
(a)Client's violation of any federal, state or local statute, regulation or ordinance relating to the disposal of hazardous substances or constituents; 
(b)Client’s undertaking of or arrangement for the handling, removal, treatment, storage, transportation or disposal of hazardous substances or 
constituents found or identified at the site; 
(c)Changed conditions or hazardous substances or constituents introduced at the site by Client or third persons before or after the completion of 
services herein. 
(d)Allegations that BECC is a handler, generator, operator, treater or storer, transporter, or disposer under the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act of 1976 as amended or any other similar federal, state or local regulation or law. 
UNFORESEEN OCCURRENCES  If, during the performance of services, any unforeseen hazardous substances or constituents or other 
unforeseen conditions or occurrences are encountered which, in BECC's sole judgment significantly affect or may affect the services, the risk 
involved in providing the services, or the recommended scope of services, BECC will promptly notify Client thereof.  Subsequent to notification, 
BECC may: 
(a) If practicable, in BECC's sole judgment, complete the original Scope of Services in accordance with the procedures originally intended in the 
proposal; 
(b) Agree with Client to modify the Scope of Services and the estimate of charges to include study of the previously unforeseen conditions or 
occurrences, such revision to be in writing and signed by the parties and incorporated herein; or 
(c) Terminate the services effective on the date specified by us in writing. 
FAILURE TO ENCOUNTER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS  It is possible that document review and site reconnaissance may fail to 
reveal the presence of hazardous materials at a site.  Client understands that BECC's failure to discover hazardous materials does not guarantee that 
hazardous materials do not exist at the site.  Similarly, a site which in fact is unaffected by hazardous materials at the time of BECC's site 
reconnaissance may become contaminated later as a result of natural phenomena or human intervention.  Client/Owner agrees that it would be unfair 
to hold BECC liable for failing to discover hazardous materials  from the scope of the work performed. Accordingly, Client waives any claim against 
BECC, and agrees to defend, indemnify and save BECC harmless from any claims or liability for injury or loss arising from BECC's failure to detect 
the presence of hazardous materials.  Client also agrees to compensate BECC for any time spent and expenses incurred by BECC in defense of any 
such claim, with such compensation to be based upon BECC's prevailing fee schedule and expense reimbursement policy relative to recovery of 
direct project costs. 
CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATES/BID DOCUMENTS  The geotechnical report that is prepared as a part of this contract is for general 
geotechnical design purposes only and the information may not be sufficient to prepare accurate bids for excavation and rock quantities, dewatering, 
removal of unsuitable materials or excavation support.  An entirely different work scope will be required for quantity estimation purposes.  
Furthermore, no subsurface exploration program, no matter how comprehensive, can reveal all that is hidden by earth, rock and time. 



 3 

Misinterpretation, improper or unauthorized use of geotechnical reports by contractors and/or other design professionals in preparing cost and 
quantity estimates or bid documents is a major cause of construction claims.  The Client agrees to indemnify and hold BECC, its agents, and 
employees harmless against claims, damages, losses including but not limited to attorney’s fees arising from any construction claims due to cost or 
quantity estimates or bid documents prepared by others without BECC’s written approval. 
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS REVIEW  The Client agrees to contract BECC to review plans and specifications and work with other 
design professionals who are affected by the geotechnical report.  The review of plans and specifications is to assure that the geotechnical issues have 
been dealt with properly and that geotechnical findings and recommendations are properly interpreted and incorporated in design.  It shall be the 
Client/Owner’s responsibility to notify other design professionals of this important and necessary review. The Client/Owner agrees to indemnify and 
hold BECC, its agents, and employees harmless against claims, damages, losses including but not limited to attorney’s fees if the Owner or other 
design professionals fail to accord BECC the recommended geotechnical review of plans and specifications. 
TESTING AND OBSERVATIONS  Client understands that testing and observation are discrete sampling procedures, and that such procedures 
indicate conditions only at the depths, locations, and times the procedures were performed.  Consultant will provide these results and opinions based 
on tests and field observations only for the work stated.  Client understands that testing and observation are not continuous or exhaustive, and are 
conducted to reduce – not eliminate- project risk.  Client agrees to the level or amount of testing performed and the associated risk.  Client is 
responsible ( even if delegated to contractor ) for notifying and scheduling BECC so BECC can perform these Services.  BECC shall not be 
responsible for the quality and completeness of Client’s contractor’s work or their adherence to the project documents, and BECC’s performance of 
testing and observation services shall not relieve Client’s contractor in any way from its responsibility for defects discovered in its work, or create a 
warranty or guarantee.  BECC will not supervise or direct the work performed by Client’s contractor or its subcontractors and is not responsible for 
their means and methods.  
MONITORING OF CONSTRUCTION  Construction monitoring is not insurance, nor does it constitute a warranty or guarantee of any type. 
Contractors, et.al., shall retain responsibility for the quality of their work and for adhering to plans and specifications.  The Client understands that 
the presence of our field representative will be for the purpose of providing observation and field testing. Our work does not include supervision or 
direction of the work of the contractor, his employees or agents. The contractor for this project should be so advised. The contractor should also be 
informed that neither the presence of our field representative nor the observation and testing by our firm shall excuse him in any way for defects 
discovered in his work. It is understood that our firm will not be responsible for job or site safety on this project. Job and site safety will be the sole 
responsibility of the contractor.  The Client understands that the words “supervision”, “inspection”, or “control” shall mean periodic observation of 
the work (and the taking of pertinent field tests outlined in the project documents) by the engineer or technician for general verification with plans 
and specifications. 
ON-CALL SERVICES  For services contracted on an on-call basis, the Client or his authorized field representative is responsible for requesting 
and coordinating our services in a timely manner. BECC cannot assume any responsibility for work not tested due to inadequate instructions, or 
notification by Client. The Client agrees to provide a minimum 24 hours prior notification for services to allow satisfactory coordination of technical 
staff. BECC cannot assume any responsibility for delays caused by lack of proper notification. 
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY  Client and consultant have evaluated the risks and rewards associated with this project, including consultant’s 
fee relative to the risks assumed, and agree to allocate certain of the risks so, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the total aggregate liability of 
consultant (and its related corporations and employees) to client and third parties granted reliance is limited to the lesser of $50,000.00 or its fee.  For 
any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses, or expenses (including attorney and expert fees) arising out of consultant’s services or this agreement 
regardless of cause(s) or the theory of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery.  Upon written request from client, BECC may 
negotiate a higher limitation of liability amount for an additional fee.  Client/Owner shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless BECC, its 
shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors, from and against any actions, claims, proceedings, suits, 
damages, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements) paid or incurred by BECC for damage to or 
loss or destruction of property, including the loss of use resulting therefrom, bodily or personal injuries, including death, any time resulting 
therefrom, sustained by any person or persons which is any way attributable to actual or alleged negligence of the Client/Owner, its employees or 
agents.  Client further agrees to indemnify BECC for any and all claims arising out of or in connection with the products or services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, claims for injury (including death) to persons, and damage to property, and based on 
product or service defects which have not been proven to have been caused solely by BECC’s negligence.  In the event such claims, losses, damages, 
or expenses are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of BECC and Client, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own 
negligence under comparative fault principles.  Causes of action arising out of BECC’s services or this agreement regardless of cause(s) or the theory 
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall 
commence to run not later than the date of BECC’s substantial completion of services on the project.  For Stormwater monitoring services, the Client 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless BECC, its shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors, from and 
against any actions, claims, proceedings, suits, damages, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and disbursements, 
arbitrations, awards, judgments,  pertaining to any action brought relating to record keeping and monitoring of the stormwater activities that was 
reported or inspected by BECC. 
INSURANCE  BECC represents and warrants that it, its agents, staff and consultants employed by it, is and are protected by workman’s 
compensation insurance as required by law and that BECC has such coverage under public liability and property damage insurance policies which 
BECC deems to be adequate. Certificates for all such policies of insurance shall be provided upon written request. Client and BECC shall waive 
subrogation against the other party on all general liability and property coverage. 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES  Neither party shall be liable to the other for loss of profits or revenue; loss of use or opportunity; loss of 
good will, cost of substitute facilities, goods, or services;  cost of capital; or for any special, consequential, indirect, punitive, or exemplary damages. 
DISPUTES  Client shall not be entitled to assert a claim against BECC based on any theory of professional negligence unless and until Client has 
obtained the written opinion from a registered, independent, and reputable engineer, architect, or geologist that BECC has violated the standard of 
care applicable to Consultant’s performance of the Services.  Client shall provide this opinion to BECC and the parties shall endeavor to resolve the 
dispute within thirty (30) days, after which Client by pursue its remedies at law.  This agreement shall be governed by and construed according to 
Alabama law.  In the event that a dispute should arise relating to the performance of the services to be provided under this Agreement, both parties 



 4 

agree to arbitrate the dispute in accordance with rules of the American Arbitration Association, and should that dispute result in arbitration, it is 
further agreed that the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable costs incurred in the defense of the claim, including staff time, court 
costs, attorneys’ fees, and other claim-related expenses. 
ASSIGNS Neither the Client nor BECC may delegate, assign, sublet or transfer his duties or interest in this Agreement without written consent of 
the other party. 
TERMINATION  This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the 
other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof. Such termination shall not be effective if that substantial failure has been remedied before 
expiration of the period specified in the written notice. In the event of termination, BECC shall be paid for services performed to the termination 
notice date plus reasonable termination expenses. In the event of termination, or suspension for more than three (3) months, prior to completion of all 
reports contemplated by this Agreement, BECC may complete such analyses and records as are necessary to complete its files and may also complete 
a report on the services performed to the date of notice of termination or suspension. The expenses of termination or suspension shall include all 
direct costs of BECC in completing such analyses, records and reports. 
CHANGE ORDERS/SCOPE OF WORK CHANGES  Client may request changes to the scope of Services by altering or adding to the 
Services to be performed.  If Client so requests, BECC will return to Client a statement or Change Order setting forth and adjustment to the Services 
and fees for the requested changes.  Following Client’s review, Client shall provide written acceptance.  If Client does not follow these procedures, 
but instead directs, authorizes, or permits BECC to perform changed or additional work, the Services are changed accordingly and BECC will be paid 
for this work according to the fees stated or its current fee schedule.  If project conditions change materially from those observed at the site or 
described to BECC at the time of proposal, BECC is entitled to a change order equitably adjusting its Services and fee. 
FORCE MAJEURE  BECC reserves the right to cancel or modify this Agreement or change any performance dates if BECC’s production is 
delayed on account of strikes in labor, fire, an act of God, governmental order or regulation, or other conditions beyond BECC’s control. BECC shall 
not be liable for delays or defaults in delivery due to fire, an act of God, governmental order or regulation or other unforeseeable causes beyond its 
control and without its fault or negligence (herein referred to as a “Force Majeure Event”), provided that BECC notifies Client/Owner within thirty 
(30) days after BECC first knows of same.   
GOVERNING LAW AND CONSENT TO JURISDICTION  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws and decisions of the State of Alabama. 
MISCELLANEOUS  This Agreement and any payment or performance due under it may not be assigned, transferred, sublet, subcontracted or 
delegated, in whole or in part, by Client/Owner without the prior written consent of BECC.  No act or failure to act of BECC shall constitute a waiver 
of any provision contained in this Agreement, and to be valid a waiver of any requirement or obligation under this Agreement must be in writing and 
signed by BECC.  The section headings contained herein are not part of this Agreement, but are included solely for the convenience of the parties.  
The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any provision is held to be unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force 
and effect. 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture between 
Client and BECC, and BECC shall at all times during the term of this Agreement be deemed to be an independent contractor, solely responsible for 
the manner by and the for in which it fulfills this Agreement.  To the extent BECC’s obligations under this Agreement require the performance of 
services by BECC on the premises of Client or any of Client customers, BECC agrees that such services are to be rendered by BECC as an 
independent contractor . 
AMENDMENT  Except in accordance with the provisions of, this Agreement may be amended only by writing signed by representatives of both 
BECC and Client, each duly authorized to execute such amendment. 
CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:   
BECC and Client/Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Contract. This mutual waiver 
includes: 

1. damages incurred by the Client for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business and reputation, and for loss 
of management or employee productivity or of the services of such persons; and 

2. damages incurred by BECC for principal office expenses including the compensation of personnel stationed there, for losses of 
financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party's termination in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to preclude an award of liquidated direct damages, when applicable, in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
Both parties agree that this document constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties.  Any and all representations made by either party are 
merged into this Agreement and if any representations, whether written or oral, are not contained in this Agreement, they have no effect and are not a 
part of the Agreement between the parties. 
 
CLIENT         BIRMINGHAM ENGINEERING &  
         CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS 
By: ________________________________     By: ______________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________     Title: _____________________________ 
 
Company :___________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________     Date: _____________________________ 











��������	
�����
�����

��������������

��������������� �!"#�! ��

���������	
�
��

��������	
	�����

 ����������

�����
�
������
�

�
����� ����������

�������

 ����������

�

��	��
 ��!���
!��"��"�� ���������� ������# #�$����
�


%�&	��
 ��

��!���
!��"��"�� ���'�����

�

�(
��	�	�
 �����

�� 

��)���*��+
,��$��-
.����/��0�12�3*4 ���������

�5$$�(
��	�	�
��

�1	�,���2�3*����0��4 �����

2�

�6��-
���

�(
��	�	�
�1	�,���2�3*����0�� �����

�

�(
��	�	�
�)����������1����!�74�$538�9��0 1���������4

�5$$��

�1	�,�� 
 �	��2�3*��������

��&�:
4 ����;�����

�5$$��

��	��
 ��!���
!��"��"�� ����;����� ������# #�$����
�


�5$$��

�(
��	�	�
 �����

2�

�6��-
���

�1	�,�� 
 �	��2�3*��������

��&�:
4 ���������

2�

�6��-
���

��	��
 ��!���
!��"��"�� ���';���� �����# #�$����
�


2�

�6��-
���

�(
��	�	�
 ������

(��5��2�	��-�#�$����
�
��!����";�"�� �����# #�$����
�


5-�	���
 ��	�
�)���2�	��-����,����
�
��(���9��0

*�-����0�(�� ��� ����!- <
����9�7�������9����3�-�
�-���������*�-����0�( �

/	����
!&7 ��� ����!- '��9��0	�
� �7-�1�
��2�	��-4

5�-�9�� ��� ����!- (
,��-���,������-

*��,!��	-��3�,���
,�	:
�9��0 ��� ����!-

������
-�	���
 ��	�
�)���2�	��-����,����
�
��(���9��0 '�� ����!-

�����
�5-�	���
 �$538�=���!�7�$�-� =���!�7�$�-� ��	
	������ 

��)���>������1=���!�74�$538�/��0

2�3* ��������� 2�3* �����'���

�5$$ ����� �

�-
�����
��5$$��  	�	�����)

��
?�
-� �5$$ �'�������

2�

�6��-
� ����� 2�

�6��-
� ���'�����

����$����
����%������&�'�($������ )#*��� �� )�+*#�� �� �)���;�������!-�1 �
-�����	�,�� 
�-����.���3�,��-
.����9��04

������$538�$�-�����$����
�
�1>������=���!�7�$538�$�-�-�.�

 �
-�����	�,�� 
�,��-
.����9��04 ����������

*�
:	��-�7���&	��
 �)

������� ���'�����

$�-�����,����
�
����+
,��,��-
�����9��0 ���������

����$������������,$��� )!�*�!� ��



��������	
�����
�����

���������������

����������� ���!�"�#$%!��

���������	
�
��

��������� 	
��
�
���

������������������������� 	���������

��������� 	������
���

��������� ��!����!��"�
"�� 	��
������� �����# #�$�������

����%�������� 	����
���

&�''��� ����(���)��*�+��$��'�,-���.��/�01�2)3 0	4�
�����3

&�''��5$$�%�������������0��+����5$$��"
�"�����6��+������

7���� ����$��8�8��30��+���1�2)����/��3 0	���
����3

&�''�1����9��'�������%���������0��+���1�2)����/�� 0	�
��
3

1�2)�����%���������(���������������!�8�$52:�;��/ 0	4�

��4
3

�5$$�����0��+�� � ����1�2)������������7�6�3 	����
��4


�5$$���������� ��!����!��"
�"�� 	�4�����
� ���
4# #�$�������

�5$$�����%�������� 	4�
��


1����9��'�������0��+�� � ����1�2)������������7�6�3 	��
�����

1����9��'������������ ��!����!��"�
"�� 	���
4�
� �����# #�$�������

1����9��'�������%�������� 	���
�

%��5��1����'�#�$���������!����"
�"�� �����# #�$�������

5'������ ������(���1����'����+����������)�9�;��/

<�'��6��;"$��8�� ����!'

=���86����0����������;��������3 ��� ����!' 
��;��/���� �8'�0)���1����'3

=���86����0+����������!�������'3 ��
 ����!' >��
��+����+�����2�-� �=��������8�9;8�������'�+�����0)���1����'3

)��+!���'��;��/�2�+����+��6��;��/ ��� ����!'

�������'������ ������(���1����'����+����������)�9�;��/ 
�� ����!'

�������5'������ �$52:�=���!�8�$�'� =���!�8�$�'� -���������� ����(���?������0=���!�83�$52:�.��/

1�2) 	��
����� 1�2) 	��������

�5$$ 	�����
�
� �5$$ 	
���4�
�

1����9��'�� 	���� 1����9��'�� 	���
4���

�� �&��� 
�� �'������(�) *&����� +�#,��#!%� +�$,�$�!#� �(���
�
�����!'�0 ��'�������+�� ��'����,���2�+��'�,����;��/3

������$52:�$�'�����$��������0=���!�8�?������$52:�$�'�'�,�

 ��'�������+�� ��+��'�,����;��/3 	���
�
��


)���������������������6��;�����������������������'����2�

�
@�$��� �������A��+�������+���''��'�;"�&A-��2�$��8@�

)������� ��;����(����&A-����B��'�� ���6�'���'����=���86����

���>��
����%�6��;"����������$�����+����������C���'����

��B��'�'� 	��

����

$�'�����+�����������*�+��+��'������;��/ 	4�
�����

�� �&���� � �����-&� � +#�,�..!�#





EXHIBIT BB
10/8/2012

Alabama Department of Transportation 3:54 PM

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant Gresham, Smith and Partners

Fee Proposal (Construction Engineering & Inspection)

PERSONNEL COST
Man-days  x  Daily Rate  

Professional Civil Engineer 0.25 344.00$      86.00$                                        
Project Manager 13.29 296.00$      3,933.84$                                   
Senior Inspector 16.13 232.00$      3,742.16$                                   
Level II Inspector 0.00 192.00$      -$                                            
Level I Inspector 0.00 -$            
Administrative Assistant 4.12 152.00$      626.24$                                      

    Total Direct Labor 8,388.24$                                   
Combined Overhead (%) 158.51 13,296.20$                                 
Out-of-Pocket Expenses** 386.75$                                      

 Sub-Total 22,071.19$                                 

Operating Margin (10%) 2,207.12$                                   
 Sub-Total 24,278.31$                                 

SUB-CONSULTANTS (attach man-day & fee FROM each sub-consultant; show total fee for each here)
BECC, Inc (Materials Testing, CE&I) 31,851.39$                                 

-$                                            
-$                                            

Subconsultant Administration Expense (5%) 1,592.57$                                   
 Sub-Total 57,722.27$                                 

Facilities Capital Cost of Money (% of Direct Labor) 0.25 20.97$                                        

 TOTAL FEE 57,743.24$                                 
**See Grand Total Fee sheet

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, 
Vestaview Lane, and Merryvale Road

Form Revised 10-25-07



EXHIBIT BB - Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant Gresham, Smith and Partners

����������	
�

��
�
���������

��������

�	�	���

�������

���������

��
�
����

���������

��
�
���

���������

��������

������	�� ��������

����������	
����

�������	�����������
�	������������������� !�"����# $�%%

��	����&�'����(����
�����	
�����������)*�+������

������������������,����
	���������-�	
	����.�/��	
��
	����	#�

������"�'�	��������������0��1�	��,���
����	����������	���

������������������	����0��������	����	#������,�'�	��������	���

�����	������������������������� !0���
���������	����������

�-����������'�����	����������	����������� !� $�%% %�*2

��	����&�'����(����
�����	
�����������)3�+����#
	
��

���	�������	

.�/�&�
������
��������	�������	

���	������"�

�������	�����������#�	������ !0��������
��������	�������	

�

��	��������������	����0���
����	���������	�������������������

�����	����0��������	��������������"������	�����������-��������

��'���������������	�����"���� !��� 4*�%% $�%% %�2%����	�����	������������ !���'���������
�������	���������

����#
	
��&��	��5�/34�+��/	
����������	
6�	����	���.���������

������ !�������
����	���	����
	
����	6����
�������	�����������

�������	�������������	����� *�%% 4�%% �

&�
����������-����������'���������������	����������� !�"�

�����	��������������-��������� 7�%% 7�%%



���	�
���	�	����������	
���� ���� ����� ����� ���� ���� ����



���	��������	�	����������	
���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����

�
�����	
����

�
����� ��
�	!�"��##���"	$	���%# ��
�	
����	���	�
���

8����

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane, and Merryvale Road

Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2 October 8, 2012



EXHIBIT BB - Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant Gresham, Smith and Partners

����������	
�

��
�
���������

��������

�	�	���

�������

���������

��
�
����

���������

��
�
���

���������

��������

������	�� ��������

�
����� ��
�	!�"��##���"	$	���%# ��
�	
����	���	�
���

8����

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane, and Merryvale Road

&������������9�����������������/�&�
���������	
6�	����	����	��

�	���
	#�������&�
�������6�����
�����1#������	����������6�

	�(	�������	�#�������,����1
���,��������������	����������������

����������������
������������ 1���
	�����:����(����������	�#�

����#� ;�%% 43�%%

���������	�	����/�����+*.�
������

���������,�������+3.�����������


������������������������������������

+4.�
������������6,������+$.�������

����
���������

&�
�������������<���	�
#���	����,�=�	����#�>��
��?��6�,�������

��� !���������!�	�����1�������������������<�������������

����������	�#� *�%% *�%% 7�%%

�������	����	����	
����������������	����	
��!�������

��1�����
�	�� 4�%% 3�%% �����������������/�2/4%����(�	#�

�����������+4.� ����,���������,������	�����+ ��.���������

����������+���
����������
����. $�%% $�%%

����	���"�������1����������������������� ����������� 4�%% 4�%% %�2%

&�
������������,��������	����	
������������������"��	����	
�

��������	�������������������?�!/37�� 4�%% 2�%%

���������	�	����/�%�2����(���6���

�����������������/�4�*2����(���6�

	
��	���

&�
�������6
#������	������	#��

�������	�����"�����	������

��� !� 4�%% �
����	
/4���������������

&�
���������	������?����������"�����	��������� !� %�*2 %�2% %�*2

&�
���������	�������1����	
��+������
��,��'�������,�

�	����	
�,��������������	
���1����	
�.� 4�%% 4�%%

���������������/�%�2����(���6���

�����������������/�%�2���(���6�

	
��

�������������	���������������	����,���� !,����#���&�
����

�����

	����������������������������� *�%% *�%% %�*2

���������������/�%�2���(���6���

�����������������/�4���(���6�

�����������
������	����'�������1#������	�����������# *�%% *�%% ���������������������

&�
���(
����#������
#�'�	��������������	��������
#�

�����	������	#������	���������� !���������&�
����'�	��������

����������	�����	�������

��'�	����#���������������5��	���

 
������(5���������������	����/*%��	����������������	�����"�

��� !� $�%% *�%% %�*2

Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2 October 8, 2012



EXHIBIT BB - Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant Gresham, Smith and Partners

����������	
�

��
�
���������

��������

�	�	���

�������

���������

��
�
����

���������

��
�
���

���������

��������

������	�� ��������

�
����� ��
�	!�"��##���"	$	���%# ��
�	
����	���	�
���

8����

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane, and Merryvale Road

����
������� !������#��	#������	����	������6�"�����	���

������ !� %�2% 4�2% %�*2

�����

	��������� !��	������6�+��������	����	
���'�����,�

����
�����	
�	���������,�����. 4�%% *�%% %�*2



����	�
���	%#�	&
���	�	�
�����	
���� ���� ����� ����� ���� ���� �����

�
����� ��
�	������
�	'�
����( ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����

�������3�	�������	
�����������

	�������	
���"�����
�������'������

�������
�����!�?8������������

��������



���	��������	�	�
�����	
���� ���� ���� �)��� ���� ���� )���

*�
+# �	��
�#�,��	- ������#�

��1��	���	
�����
���������������� ���
��������������	
�����������	


����	��,���������1��	���	
�����
���������������� ���
��������������	
�����������	


>��	
����������� ���
��������������	
�����������	


!	6�����������������	���������
��	#�����
������������������"�

�	
��
	������
	���������-�	
	�����

���
������������
�����	
�

����������)4

>��	
�@��?�!/37���� 1�	���	�#���������������	����������

�����	����������� !�����1����?�!/37�������� !�������
������

&���

��	�#�������������?�!/37�� ���
��������������	
�����������	


�	
��
	���"���
�������	
���������'�	��������������	���>��	
�

�����	������������������	�����������
������&���

��������������

����������	����� ���
��������������	
�����������	


>��	
�@��>��	
������	����������>��	
������	��������� !� ���
��������������	
�����������	


Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2 October 8, 2012



EXHIBIT BB - Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant Gresham, Smith and Partners

����������	
�

��
�
���������

��������

�	�	���

�������

���������

��
�
����

���������

��
�
���

���������

��������

������	�� ��������

�
����� ��
�	!�"��##���"	$	���%# ��
�	
����	���	�
���

8����

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane, and Merryvale Road

&���

��'�	����#�'��������(�������������������� !� ���
��������������	
�����������	


����	�������+4.��������	�/1��
���
	��������&�
����"���	���	�/

1��
����������	�/1��
���������#��� ���
��������������	
�����������	


�������	������������
��������������� ! ���
��������������	
�����������	


�����
��	�����
�
���	

������������������������������������ !�

	����������
��������������������� ���
��������������	
�����������	




���	�
���	�	*�
+# �	��
�#�,��	- ������#� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����



���	��������	�	*�
+# �	��
�#�,��	- ������#� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����



���	�������� ���� ����� ����� � � )���

Fee Proposal - Supplemental Agreement No. 2 October 8, 2012



EXHIBIT BB
10/8/2012

Alabama Department of Transportation 3:54 PM

Project No. STPBH-CN10(908)
County Jefferson

Description
Scope of Work CE&I (Supplemental Agreement #2)
Project Length 1.33 Miles

Consultant

TRAVEL COST
Trips Miles/Trip $/Mile Total

25 15 $0.510 191.25$          
2 25 $0.510 25.50$            
0 0 $0.510 -$                
0 0 $0.510 -$                

216.75$          

Days # People $/Day Total
0 0 $11.25 -$                
0 0 $20.00 -$                
0 0 $30.00 -$                
0 0 $75.00 -$                
0 0 $0.00 -$                

-$                
216.75$          

PRINTING / REPRODUCTION COST
Type of printing/reproduction (see attached 
breakdown) # of Sets Sheets/Set Total Sheets Cost/Sheet Total
8 1/2"x11" B/W Prints & Copies 0 0 500 0.08$         40.00$            
11"x17" B/W Prints & Copies 0 0 500 0.16$         80.00$            
22"x34" B/W Prints & Copies 0 0 0 0.72$         -$                

0 0 0 -$           -$                
0 0 0 -$           -$                
0 0 0 -$           -$                

120.00$          

Communication Cost (telephone, fax, etc.) Total
-$                

Postage Cost (overnight, stamps, etc.) Total
50.00$            

Other (provide description on next line) Total
-$                

386.75$          

Comments:

Sidewalks in Vestavia Hills Along Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane, 
and Merryvale Road

***You must have ALDOT approval for ANY overnight trips of less than 100 miles.

      Total Out-of-pocket Expenses

Total Subsistence Cost
Total Travel Cost

Total Printing/Reproduction Cost

Stakes, construction paint, field books

Travel allowance (6 hour trips)
Travel allowance (12 hour trips - meal provided by others)
Travel allowance (12 hour trips)
Travel allowance (overnight)***
 

 

 
 

 Total Mileage Cost

Subsistence Cost

Gresham, Smith and Partners
Out-of-pocket Expenses (Construction Engineering & Inspection)

Mileage Cost

Trips to Project (Routine Site Visits, Misc. Site 
Visits/Meetings, Progress Meetings)
Trips to ALDOT 3rd Division Office

Form Revised 1-7-10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 26, 2012 
 
 
 
Mr. Blair Perry, P.E.  
Gresham Smith & Partners 
3595 Grandview Parkway 
Birmingham, Alabama 35243 
 
 
Subject: Proposal for Additional Construction Materials Testing Services 
  For Vestavia Hills Sidewalks 
  ALDOT Project Number STPBH-CN10(908) 
  Canyon Road, Vestaview Lane and Merryvale Road 
  Vestavia Hills, Alabama  
  BECC Proposal Number:  Q1-12030rrr 
 
 
Dear Mr. Perry: 
 
Birmingham Engineering and Construction Consultants, Inc. (BECC) appreciates the 
opportunity to submit our proposal for call-out construction materials testing services for the 
subject project.  BECC is a certified testing laboratory with certifications from several 
independent national organizations and we meet the requirements of ASTM E 548.  Our 
technicians and inspectors are certified in materials testing by ACI, NICET, AWS, FAA and 
ALDOT.  BECC is also a certified woman-owned small business (DBE) with the ALDOT. 
Based on our knowledge of the project, we anticipate the following inspection and testing may be 
required: 
 
• Compaction Testing/ Proofrolling  
 
• Concrete Testing 
 
• ALDOT Inspector Services 
 



  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

This proposal is for the purpose of expanding BECC original scope of services and schedule for 
the subject project.  We understand that the project will consist of sidewalks and crosswalk 
additions to the City of Vestavia Hills in Alabama.  The project is funded under a grant by the 
Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT).  The sidewalk areas include Vestaview Lane, 
Canyon Road and Merryvale Road.   
BECC will be responsible for inspection and construction materials testing that will primarily 
include concrete testing.  All testing procedures will be to ALDOT and ASTM guidelines.  We 
have estimated that the total duration for the additional services is approximately 55 working 
days.  Depending on the contractor’s schedule, the actual time may vary. 
 
 

UNIT RATES AND TERMS 
 
We have provided our unit rates and estimated budget on the attached Exhibit “A”.  The 
remaining budget as of February 1, 2012 was subtracted from the proposed amount.  This budget 
was based upon the contractors anticipated schedule and may need to be revised once the project 
is underway.  BECC will use these rates to complete the above Scope of Services.  The attached 
rates are for call-out construction materials testing services for this project and do not include 
engineering consultation or investigation services unless otherwise requested.   
For services contracted on a call-out basis, the client or his authorized field representative is 
responsible for requesting and coordinating our services.  BECC cannot assume any 
responsibility for work not tested due to inadequate instructions, or notification by client.  
Construction monitoring is not insurance, nor does it constitute a warranty or guarantee of any 
type.  The test results are reported to and for the specific use of the client and may not be relied 
upon by any third party.      
 



  

 
CLOSING 

 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue our good working relationship with you on this 
project.  We have attached a copy of our Terms and Conditions and if acceptable, please execute 
the last page of the Terms and Conditions and fax it back to me.    
 
Our primary objective is to provide the necessary services in the most efficient manner to verify 
specification compliance.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not 
hesitate to contact our office.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Birmingham Engineering & Construction Consultants, Inc. 

 
Martin T. Burford, P.E.      
Vice President        



Personnel Work Days Hours/Day Hourly Cost Total
Inspector/ Technicians -Field and Lab (ALDOT Concrete Certified) 55.00 8.00 22.00$             9,680.00$                                   
Inspector/ Technicians -Field and Lab (ALDOT Concrete Certified)-OT 0.00 0.00 33.00$             -$                                           
Project Engineer, PE - Report Review/Proj Management 55.00 0.25 27.89$             383.49$                                      
Administrative 0.00 0.25 14.00$             -$                                           

 10,063.49$                                 
Combined Overhead (%) 169.05 17,012.33$                                 

 Sub-Total 27,075.81$                                 
Other Costs Quantity Units Unit Cost Total
Concrete Cylinders (35 sets of 4 cylinders) 160.00 cylinders 8.00$               1,280.00$                                   
Mileage 1200 miles 0.50$               600.00$                                      

 Sub-Total 1,880.00$                                   

Operating Margin (10%) 2,895.58$                                   
Facilities Cost of Capital- FCC (%) 2.53 254.61$                                      

 ESTIMATED FEE 31,851.39$                                 

Notes:

Minimum call-out time is 4 hours for all field technicians.
All personnel rates are charged portal-to-portal.
Overtime will be charged at a rate of 1.5 times the hourly rate for any hours worked over 8 per working day, over 40 hours per working week, 
before 7:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m., and any hours worked on Saturdays or Sundays.  National Holidays will be billed at 2 time the prorated hourly rate.

October 1, 2012

Fee Proposal for

This budget was based upon an anticipated schedule of 50 workdays.

                                      Total Direct Labor

ALDOT Project Nos. STPBH-CN10(908)
VESTAVIA HILLS SIDEWALKS

Construction Materials Testing and Inspection Services
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

BECC Proposal Nos. Q1-12030rrr

EXHIBIT "A"



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Phase: 08 Extra Service

02728 Gurney, Bryan 2/8/2012 72085 .50

Revisions to Driveway calculations for RE Grills Time Extention

02728 Gurney, Bryan 3/30/2012 72085 .25

Sidewalk Ramp Calculation

02728 Gurney, Bryan 4/2/2012 72085 1.00

Sidewalk Ramp Calculation

03265 Corlett, Leslie 1/24/2012 72085 1.00

detour diagram to close post oak rd

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/9/2012 72085 2.25

shooting driveways in field

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/12/2012 72085 2.50

setting up file to work in, driveway plan & profiles, putting in shots from field, calculating quantities from placement and removal

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/13/2012 72085 7.50

driveway plan & profiles, calculating quantities for placement & removal

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/14/2012 72085 7.25

driveway quanitites, problems with Microstation, fixing printing, creating pdf's of plan & profile views

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/15/2012 72085 7.00

printing, redoing prf's, out in field with David reshooting several driveways, redrafting some driveway profiles

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/16/2012 72085 2.75

working on driveways, working on quantity spreadsheet

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/19/2012 72085 5.00

valley gutter to curb detail, copied pictures to directory, checking through driveways with Blair, some revisions, adding Canyon & 
Eastwood

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/20/2012 72085 6.50

getting driveway packages together for ALDOT, writing letter to Geneva Brown

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/21/2012 72085 .50

getting driveway package ready to go out to Christopher Brady, responding to email

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/29/2012 72085 1.50

looking at Don Chappell's response to driveway letter, driveway discrepancies between poured & removed

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/31/2012 72085 2.00

reclass from 28543.00, shooting driveways in field

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/2/2012 72085 1.00

driveways on W illoughby, spreadsheet, sent to Blair, made PDF & copies

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/11/2012 72085 4.00

Merryvale, revising 5 driveway profiles, plan views & quantities per valley gutter insertion

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/12/2012 72085 1.25

revisions to driveways

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/13/2012 72085 2.75

back-checking Blair's retaining wall quantities

03265 Corlett, Leslie 5/1/2012 72085 1.25

updated supplemental agreement, printed & organized exhibits & supp agreements for Blair

03265 Corlett, Leslie 5/16/2012 72085 .50

review of Blair's letter to Grills from Field Scope Review

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/3/2012 72085 .75

detail for Blair for handicap ramps

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/23/2012 72085 .25

handicap detail ramp changes per Lance Taylor

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/24/2012 72085 .75

altering sheet per changes from Blair

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/30/2012 72085 .75

looking for RPC traffic counts, sorting thru clearzone guidance on residential streets & acceptable clear zone width

03276 Perry, Blair 7/27/2011 72085 .50

Driveway/ADA cross slope issue - discuss w/C Brady & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/1/2011 72085 .50

Driveway ADA cross slope issue - research FHW A & Access Board guidelines, coord. w/Greg Hansen & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/4/2011 72085 .25

Page 18 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

ADA/drive cross slope issue - review & respond to Greg Hansen comments; coord. w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 8/5/2011 72085 .25

Coord. ADA/driveway cross slope issue w/C Brady; ADA/driveway cross slope confirmation e-mail to C. Brady, others

03276 Perry, Blair 8/14/2011 72085 .50

Correction from 8/10 - Coord. driveway ADA cross slopes w/City & ALDOT; Addl easements-discuss addl easements, required 
donation language w/C Brady, B W isener & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/17/2011 72085 .50

ADA Driveway cross slope issue-discuss w/ALDOT & City; missing items in plans-brick paver qty takeoff for HC ramps

03276 Perry, Blair 8/18/2011 72085 .25

Brief PIC on ADA driveway cross slope issue, misc. driveway cross slope coord.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/19/2011 72085 2.75

ADA ramp research & coord. w/City; Coord. Ty C C&G areas & other addl pay items needed w/City; Addl pay items-pay item 
research, quantity takeoff and letter to Grills requesting pricing, coord. w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 8/22/2011 72085 .25

Letter to grills re pricing for additional pay items needed

03276 Perry, Blair 8/23/2011 72085 1.25

Add'l pay items & qtys- memo re guardrail on Merryvale at ret wall; quantity takeoff & letter to Grills re additional pay items needed; 
talk to Marty Burford at BECC about asphalt drive buildups

03276 Perry, Blair 8/24/2011 72085 .50

Review & coord. addl HC ramp details w/G Hansen; send driveway typical section & HC ramp details to Grills; talk to Grills re addl 
pay items; send CB ALDOT ROW  donation letter

03276 Perry, Blair 8/25/2011 72085 .50

Add driveway detail & HC ramp details to plans; Addl pay items-coord. pricing for addl pay items

03276 Perry, Blair 9/8/2011 72085 .50

Talk to R Swann at Grills about pricing for additional pay itemsl; Calculate qtys for concrete driveway overruns

03276 Perry, Blair 9/12/2011 72085 1.75

Additional concrete drive removal and required qtys; calculate other overruns; stationing problem on W illoughby; aggregate 
surfacing qtys (overrun)

03276 Perry, Blair 10/13/2011 72085 .25

Coord. pricing for Change Request #1 w/Rick Swann at Grills; Email & coord. need for channelizing drums w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 10/17/2011 72085 .50

Review & update overruns/underruns for items left out of project; coord. Change Request #1 w/Grills & City

03276 Perry, Blair 10/26/2011 72085 .50

Research ADA & FHW A guidelines on HC ramps & crosswalks, typical detail sketch for HC ramps & crosswalks; Review Hansen 
CAD files; Coord. HC ramps & crosswalks w/City

03276 Perry, Blair 11/14/2011 72085 2.50

Review existing overruns; calculate additional overruns; update overrun/underrun report

03276 Perry, Blair 11/15/2011 72085 .50

PM-review invoices from BECC (field concrete testing) & Greg Hansen.  Finish Estimate 3 package & send to City.  Send 
overrun/underrun report to City.

03276 Perry, Blair 11/16/2011 72085 1.50

Change Request #1 - Review pricing information from Grills, prepare letter to ALDOT, prepare summary spreadsheet of pay items, 
quantities & costs, compile Change Request 1 package to send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 11/18/2011 72085 .25

Finalize Change Request #1 information & send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 12/7/2011 72085 .50

Talk to Geneva Brown, Danny Reid & Adriana Dunn at ALDOT about Change Request work/items/prices

03276 Perry, Blair 12/8/2011 72085 .25

Talk to C Brady & D Key about ALDOT comments/concerns w/Change Request #1

03276 Perry, Blair 12/14/2011 72085 .50

Talk to R Swann at Grills about need for uncl. exc. for driveway reconstruction, force account work, Change Request 1; Talk to C 
Brady about Change Request, force account

03276 Perry, Blair 12/19/2011 72085 .25

Coord. Change Request 1 draft letter for City, letter to ALDOT w/D Key

03276 Perry, Blair 1/3/2012 72085 .75

Handicap ramps-coord. w/C Brady, G Hansen & ALDOT; Review R.E. Grills letter re time extension & uncl. exc. for drives

03276 Perry, Blair 1/6/2012 72085 .25

Station equations on W illoughby & Post Oak

03276 Perry, Blair 1/9/2012 72085 1.50

Page 19 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Coord. grading revisions at 1817 Post Oak w/City & G Hansen; Draft letter re items to remove from Change Request 1 for City; Site 
visit at 1817 Post Oak Rd to look at need for ret wall

03276 Perry, Blair 1/10/2012 72085 1.00

Coord. grading revisions/ret wall at 1817 Post Oak; Handicap ramps-prepare for meeting w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/11/2012 72085 3.00

Mtg. w/ALDOT, FHW A & City to discuss curb ramps, inspection, traffic control, etc.; Site visit on Post Oak Rd. w/City to look at plan 
revisions; Markup Post Oak plan revisions  to submit to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/12/2012 72085 1.25

Coordinate plan revisions on Post Oak w/ALDOT & City; Look at plan revisions needed on Post Oak Rd.; send marked up plans & 
summary of Post Oak Plan revisions to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/13/2012 72085 .50

Expense report (Post Oak plan revisions site visit); Talk to Rick at Grills about time extension request for drives, Change Request 
#1, Post Oak plan revisions

03276 Perry, Blair 1/14/2012 72085 .75

Correction from 1/9-Site visit w/Greg Hansen on Post Oak Rd to look at grading at 1817 Post Oak Rd, drainage & curb&gutter 
layout on Post Oak Rd

03276 Perry, Blair 1/15/2012 72085 .25

Correction from 1/10-Coord. Post Oak plan revisions, grading revisions at 1817 Post Oak Rd w/City & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/16/2012 72085 .25

Coord. plan revisions on Post Oak, Contractor driveway time extension request, other misc. CE&I w/JDK

03276 Perry, Blair 1/18/2012 72085 1.00

Coord. plan revisions on Post Oak Rd. w/C Brady;Site visit to measure existing pavement widths, look at water main location on 
Post Oak w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 1/20/2012 72085 1.50

Discuss/evaluate Grills time extension request for driveways, add'l information needed from ALDOT;Progress meeting-discuss 
issue w/curb ramps w/ALDOT & City; Send detailed description of Post Oak plan revisions to City

03276 Perry, Blair 1/24/2012 72085 .25

Time extension request for drives -Review add'l info from Grills, send to City

03276 Perry, Blair 1/30/2012 72085 .50

Post Oak plan revisions-coord. Post Oak plan revisions, add'l pay items needed w/ALDOT & C Brady.  Coord. curb ramps, 
driveways & overall construction & CE&I w/C Brady. Coord. future inspection w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 1/31/2012 72085 .25

Coord. plan revisions on Post Oak Rd. w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/3/2012 72085 .25

Post Oak Plan Revisions & TCP Detour - Coord. w/ALDOT & City.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/8/2012 72085 1.00

Driveway time extension & uncl. exc. request-review information from Grills, letter to City re time extension & uncl. exc, discuss 
time extension w/Grills, review/revise estimated qtys. for uncl. exc.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/13/2012 72085 .50

Coordinate project w/C Brady - Post Oak plan revisions, curb ramps, additional CE&I, etc.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/14/2012 72085 2.00

Proj. Mgmt.-review CE&I fees spent to date vs. budget, estimate fees needed to complete project. Meet w/City to review CE&I fees, 
budget, est. amount to complete, discuss additional FT CE&I.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/16/2012 72085 .50

Coord. Post Oak plan revisions w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 2/17/2012 72085 1.25

Additional driveways-review letter to City re: Grills time extension request, unclassified excavation.  Review additional driveways & 
estimated qty for uncl. exc.  Coord. add'l driveways w/J Hughes.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/20/2012 72085 .75

Coord. Change Request #1, Post Oak plan revisions w/ALDOT.  Coord. invoices & add'l CE&I proposal w/Greg Hansen.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/5/2012 72085 .50

Review overruns, plan revisions, monthly estimates, time charges w/D. Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/7/2012 72085 .25

Coord. profiles needed for additional driveways to be removed and reconstructed.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/9/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate driveway profiles w/JDK & LBC.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/12/2012 72085 .25

Additional driveway profiles & quantities to provide 2%  max cross slope. Coord. Post Oak Rd plan revisions & Change Request #1 
w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/13/2012 72085 2.50

Page 20 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Meeting on site w/ALDOT & City to look at curb ramp at Post Oak & Merryvale.  Look at curb ramps on Post Oak Rd w/ALDOT.
Talk to ALDOT about Post Oak Rd. plan revisions.  Review overruns w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/14/2012 72085 2.75

Additional driveway profiles & qtys. Request pricing for new pay items from Grills, coord. w/Grills. Review overruns w/JDK. Coord. 
w/C. Brady. Coord. Post Oak plan revisions, Change Request #1, curb ramps w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/15/2012 72085 3.50

W ork on quantities & profiles for additional driveways to provide 2%  cross slope. Talk to R Swann at Grills re delays, Change 
Request #1, delays. Curb ramps replacement-field review on Post Oak Rd to mark & measure curb ramps to be replaced.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/16/2012 72085 2.25

Curb ramp removals & reconstruction-site visit on Post Oak & Eastwood to measure removal and reconstruction qtys & mark new 
ramp locations.  Quantities for curb ramp removal & reconstruction.  Coord. curb ramp removal & reconstruction w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/19/2012 72085 1.25

Review/revise additional driveway removal and reconstruction qtys, sketches & profiles. Site visit-measure cross slope of driveway 
at Sta. 20+40 W illoughby.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/20/2012 72085 3.00

Print/file misc. correspondence(Change Request #1, curb ramps). Add'l driveway quantities & package for ALDOT. Send add'l 
drive info to ALDOT. Revise & resubmit Change Request #1. Talk to RE Grills re changes, progress meeting, Change Request 1.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/29/2012 72085 1.50

Additional driveway quantities-coord. w/ALDOT & City; review/respond to FHW A questions about driveway quantities.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/30/2012 72085 1.25

Expense report. Driveway quantities for additional driveways on W illoughby Rd. Progress meeting agenda. Research/drawing for 
parallel curb ramp at Post Oak & Leona W ay.  Progress meeting to discuss Change Request 1, driveways, time extension, other 
issues

03276 Perry, Blair 4/1/2012 72085 4.00

Reclass from 28543.00-W ork on additional driveway quantities, sketches, profiles coordination, etc. on March 
7,9,11,13,14,15,19,20

03276 Perry, Blair 4/2/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate easements needed for W illoughby driveways w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/3/2012 72085 .25

Meeting w/G Brown & A Dunn at ALDOT to discuss Change Request 1, driveways, ramps, misc.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/4/2012 72085 .50

Update C Brady on ramp issue, ramp replacement & additional driveways. Coordinate ramps w/ALDOT, City & BECC.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/5/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate detailed drawings for ramps w/LBC.  Coordinate ramps w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/11/2012 72085 .50

Review revised driveway profiles on Merryvale & send revised profile information to City & M Manning.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/12/2012 72085 1.75

Additional driveways on Merryvale-review revised profiles & plans & send to City & Mark. Calculate/update overruns.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/13/2012 72085 2.00

Review/update overruns & underruns. Check W illoughby retaining wall quantities.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/16/2012 72085 .25

Ramp/PROW AG issue-talk to Geneva Brown at ALDOT about ramps/PROW AG issues, communicate w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 4/19/2012 72085 .25

Talk to Contractor about monthly estimate & current ADA issues

03276 Perry, Blair 4/23/2012 72085 .75

Coord project w/City Engineer. Prepare project cost summary for City Council.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/24/2012 72085 .25

Revise supplemental agreement #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/26/2012 72085 .25

Talk to C. Brady about ramp issues, mtg. w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 4/30/2012 72085 .50

Project management - review April labor & expenses; invoicing. Talk to D Pendley at ALDOT about overruns. Prepare 
Supplemental Agreement #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/1/2012 72085 .75

Project management-prepare Supplemental CEI Agreement. Misc. project coordination.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/7/2012 72085 2.50

ADA/Accessibility Issues-field review w/ALDOT to look at cross slopes, driveways, ramps on Eastwood

03276 Perry, Blair 5/9/2012 72085 1.50

ADA/Accessibility Issues-research curb ramps in 2010 & 1991 ADA & 2004 ADAAG. Meeting notes from field review w/ALDOT on 
5/7.

Page 21 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

03276 Perry, Blair 5/10/2012 72085 2.75

ADA/Accessibility scoping field review w/ALDOT on W illoughby Rd & Post Oak Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/11/2012 72085 1.00

ADA/Accessibility scoping field review w/ALDOT on Post Oak Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/13/2012 72085 -1.00

Correction from 5/9

03276 Perry, Blair 5/16/2012 72085 1.75

Memo to Grills about results of ALDOT ADA/accessibility scoping review and work that needs to be completed. Coord. ramp details 
w/ALDOT. Proj Mgmt-Process CE&I Suppl. Agreement #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/18/2012 72085 .25

Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about Supplemental Agreements & contractor time extension request & uncl. exc. request for add'l 
driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/21/2012 72085 .25

Coord. Change Request/Supplemental Agreement #1 & time extension request for add'l driveways w/D Peneley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/22/2012 72085 .75

Review Grills letter re ramp price & time ext request for ramps. Coord. info needed for add'l driveway time ext w/Grills & ALDOT. 
Coord. info needed for revised driveway conc unit price w/ALDOT & Grills. Coord. W illoughby easements w/City. Talk to D Noone

03276 Perry, Blair 5/23/2012 72085 1.00

Review/print/file corr re time ext requests. Coord. ramp price & time ext requests, Change Request #1, addl driveway uncl exc 
w/ALDOT & City. Coord. W illoughby work & easements w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/24/2012 72085 1.00

Coord. work on Post Oak Road (ADA scoping review) w/D W illingham @  BW SC. Update overruns/underruns. Coord. info needed 
for ramp change request w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/25/2012 72085 .25

ALDOT ADA Scoping field review memo-finalize & send out

03276 Perry, Blair 5/27/2012 72085 -.50

Correction from 5/24

03276 Perry, Blair 5/29/2012 72085 .50

Revise Change Request #1, draft City concurrence letter & send to City.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/12/2012 72085 1.00

Talk to Grills about time extension for addl driveways, unclassified excavation for addl cut driveways, price for HC ramps. Send 
Grills info on uncl exc quantities for addl cut driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/13/2012 72085 .50

Coordinate project, W illoughby easements w/C Brady at City. Coord. several issues/questions w/ G Brown at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/18/2012 72085 1.00

Meet w/Contractor on site to review work to be completed on Post Oak Rd. Re-mark ramp locations on Post Oak Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/21/2012 72085 .75

Meet w/G Brown at ALDOT to discuss several outstanding issues (dwg for HC ramps, Contractor Change Requests, labor 
compliance reviews, W illoughby easements, Change Request #1). Meet w/C Brady at City to coord. Change Request #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/25/2012 72085 .25

Coord. W illoughby easements, misc. w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/27/2012 72084 1.25

Coord. status of ALDOT ADA/accessibility scoping review report & 1817 Post Oak Rd w/D W illingham (ALDOT ADA consultant). 
Site visit - mark revised ramp locations on Post Oak Rd & coordinate w/Contractor.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/29/2012 72084 .50

Coordinate outstanding Change Requests, Contractor time extension requests w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/5/2012 72084 .25

Handicap ramp detail-review/revise detail & send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 7/9/2012 72084 .25

Coord. w/Contractor on add'l information needed re time ext requests, uncl exc for driveways, HC ramp price, updated schedule of 
operations

03276 Perry, Blair 7/11/2012 72084 .50

Coordinate w/D Pendley at ALDOT on time extensions, C-20s, change requests. Review Change Request letters from City & 
forward to ALDOT.  Coordinate ramp reconstruction w/Inspector.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/15/2012 72084 .50

Timesheet correction for 7/10 - Talk to C Brady at City about change requests, W illoughby easements, Change Requests, other 
issues.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/16/2012 72084 .25

Coord. handicap ramps, layout of parallel handicap ramp at Post Oak and Leona W ay w/others.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/17/2012 72084 .25

Page 22 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Coord. potential changes needed (add inlet) for ramp on Leona W ay w/City & ALDOT. Ramp coordination w/City & Contractor.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/20/2012 72084 1.25

Meet with ALDOT staff to look at need for additional inlet on Leona W ay at ramp. Research clear zone for W illoughby retaining wall 
and coordinate with ALDOT & City.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/23/2012 72084 .25

Coord. ramp and additional inlet at Leona W ay w/ALDOT & City. Review/revise drawing for ramps for ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/26/2012 72084 2.00

Coordinate changes needed at Leona W ay ramp w/ALDOT; stop contractor from working on Leona W ay ramp per ALDOT. Talk to 
Contractor about information for Change Requests, time extension requests, ramp issues, etc. Coord. Minor Structure Concrete 
w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/29/2012 72084 .25

Timesheet correction for 7/25 - Coordinate additional work at ramp at east side of Leona W ay w/ALDOT & Contractor

03276 Perry, Blair 7/30/2012 72084 .25

Coordinate information for Change Requests w/Contractor. Proj. Mgmt-review July labor & expense reports, invoicing.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/31/2012 72084 .25

Coordinate project w/PIC. Review/revise handicap ramp detail & send to ALDOT. Scheduling progress meeting.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/2/2012 72084 .25

Review/file misc. project correspondence. Coord. contract time & liquidated damages w/D Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/7/2012 72084 .50

Review Project Diary and June quantities in field book. Coord. w/Inspector. Prepare agenda for Progress Mtg. Progress Mtg. 
w/Grills, ALDOT & City. Coord. time charges w/JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/8/2012 72084 .50

Coordinate time charges, time extensions, controlling item of work w/ALDOT.  Markup pictures of incorrect ramps at Post Oak and 
Southridge.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/9/2012 72084 .50

Talk to D Pendley about bad headwalls. Review revisions needed to ramps on Post Oak Rd w/JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/12/2012 70084 .25

Correction from 8/9 - Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about time charges, controlling item(s) of work, information needed for Change 
Requests

03276 Perry, Blair 8/13/2012 70084 .25

Review letter from Grills re additional time & unclassified excacation for additional driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/16/2012 70084 1.50

Coord. outstanding items w/ALDOT. Review letter from Grills re time extension for add'l driveways. Mtg. w/Rick Swann w/ Grills re 
time extension, time charges. Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about info needed minor str. conc., uncl. exc.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/21/2012 70084 1.25

Talk to D Pendley & A Dunn at ALDOT about minor structure concrete cost & qty and uncl. exc. for add'l driveways. Site visit to 
measure steps & thickened edge sidewalk (minor str. conc.) on Post Oak Rd, Leona W ay & Post Oak Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/22/2012 70084 1.50

Site visit-look at ramp layout, minor structure concrete area at Leona W ay ramp. Coord. Leona W ay ramp layout w/ALDOT. Review 
ramp layout at Post Oak & Southridge.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/23/2012 70084 .75

Diary entries for 8/21 & 8/22 (Leona W ay ramp). Meet w/David Nooney w/Grills to discuss contract time, Change Requests, plan 
issues, other issues.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/24/2012 70084 .50

Coord. Leona W ay ramp w/Grills Supt., ALDOT & JDK. Research detectable warning and landing requirements in ADA & 
PROW AG (Leona W ay ramp) & coord. w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/27/2012 70084 .25

Talk to C Brady at City about misc. issues, Leona W ay ramp, W illoughby Rd.work

03276 Perry, Blair 8/28/2012 70084 1.00

Coordinate Leona W ay ramp & Eastwood ramp modifications (truncated dome placement) w/Contractor & ALDOT. Site visit to look 
at Eastwood ramps (truncated dome placement) w/Contractor.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/29/2012 70084 .75

Coord. Eastwood ramps, Leona W ay ramp w/JDK & A Dunn at ALDOT. Coord. ADA Scoping review letter w/A Dunn at ALDOT. 
Coord. W illoughby Rd. easements w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/30/2012 70084 1.25

Update overruns.  Review/revise C-20s.  Coord. w/ALDOT on time charges. Letter to Contractor re work to be completed & 
controlling work.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/31/2012 70084 .50

Coordinate review of driveway time extension request w/Project Inspector & ALDOT. Coordinate funding, ADA issues, ramps, 
W illoughby easements, other issues w/C Brady at City.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/10/2012 70084 .25

Page 23 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Review/file misc. project correspondence. Review driveway time extension information w/JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/11/2012 70084 1.00

Driveway time extension request analysis. Talk to C. Brady about W illoughby Rd work-status of easements, traffic counts. Talk to 
R. Swann about Leona W ay work, minor structure concrete.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/12/2012 70084 2.00

Review/compile information re additional driveway time extension request.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/13/2012 70084 1.75

Compile information re addl driveway time extension, letter to ALDOT. Review draft ADA Scoping review reports, send C Brady 
comments, coord. w/C Brady. Review Grills letter re Merryvale sidewalk time ext request.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/14/2012 70084 1.25

Mtg. w/City & Contractor to discuss ADA issues, time extension request, Supplemental Agreements, W illoughby Rd work, 
W illoughby Rd easements, W illoughby Rd retaining wall/clear zone, sidewalk cro

03276 Perry, Blair 9/17/2012 70084 .50

Coord. R. E. Grills time extension request, time charges, ADA issues w/D Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/18/2012 70084 .50

Coord. time extensions for addl driveways w/D Pendley at ALDOT. Revise driveway time extension information.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/19/2012 70084 .50

Additional driveway time extension - Coord. w/D Pendley at ALDOT & City, make revisions & re-send to City. Qtys. for Minor 
Structure Concrete.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/20/2012 70084 .75

Calculate minor structure conc. & uncl. exc. qtys for Leona W ay ramp.  Review qtys. for additional driveways; costs for additional 
driveways.  Update overruns.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/21/2012 70084 1.50

Calculate minor structure concrete qtys for Post Oak steps & footing under sidewalk. Uncl excavation qtys. Discuss time charges, 
time extension calculation & liquidated damages w/D Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/24/2012 70084 .25

Coordinate revisions to C-20s, time extensions w/JDK & ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/25/2012 70084 .25

Unclassified excavation qtys for add'l driveways, minor structure concrete quantities to for ALDOT (Change Request #2). Coord. 
revisions to C-20s w/JDK.

03315 Ashley, Theresa 9/13/2012 67080 .75

Daily Log Prep- copying

04265 Key, John 1/9/2012 97088 1.00

Evaluate change order justification

04265 Key, John 3/9/2012 97088 2.75

Take level shots for additional driveways

04265 Key, John 3/11/2012 97088 2.25

Reallocated per Blair Perry-Survey for driveway profile

04265 Key, John 3/15/2012 97088 4.00

Driveway survey with leslie

04265 Key, John 3/16/2012 97088 4.00

Driveway survey with leslie

04265 Key, John 4/10/2012 97088 2.00

Remeasure Merryvale Road Driveways

04265 Key, John 4/13/2012 97088 2.00

Investigate driveway questions-removed vs poured

04265 Key, John 4/23/2012 97088 2.00

jeff hughes-driveway questions-removed vs poured.

04265 Key, John 4/24/2012 97088 .50

Revisions to change request and summmary sheet.

04265 Key, John 8/30/2012 97088 1.00

Review and revise C-20 concerning vestavia ramps

04265 Key, John 9/7/2012 97088 .50

Review data submitted by Grills for the additional time requested due to the added driveways.

04265 Key, John 9/11/2012 97088 1.00

Driveway Review for requested time

04265 Key, John 9/12/2012 97088 1.00

Grills Driveway Review with Blair

04265 Key, John 9/13/2012 97088 .50

Page 24 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Driveway Review for requested time and deliver documents to ALDOT

04265 Key, John 9/24/2012 97088 2.00

Back check Daily with C-20 from day 1

04265 Key, John 9/25/2012 97088 2.00

Meeting with ALDOT

Total for 08 204.25

Page 25 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28542.00 City of Vestavia Hills - SRTS SR09 914 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:00:01 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Phase: 08 Extra Service

02728 Gurney, Bryan 2/3/2012 72085 1.00

Backcheck Retaining W all Plan & Profile versus comments

02728 Gurney, Bryan 2/8/2012 72085 .50

Revisions to Driveway calculations for RE Grills Time Extention

02728 Gurney, Bryan 4/4/2012 72085 1.00

Deliever Driveway Profiles to Mark Manning

03265 Corlett, Leslie 2/15/2012 72085 1.25

looking @  sag pt for inlets on Merryvale, import text file as gps coordinates

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/9/2012 72085 2.00

shooting driveways in field

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/16/2012 72085 2.00

inlet on Merryvale

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/19/2012 72085 .50

inlet on Merryvale

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/20/2012 72085 1.50

inlet on Merryvale

03265 Corlett, Leslie 3/31/2012 72085 -2.00

reclass to 28542.00, shooting driveways in field

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/2/2012 72085 1.00

modify inlet & juntion box @  post oak rd, changes, pdf

03265 Corlett, Leslie 4/4/2012 72085 .50

plan/profile merryvale, sent to Mark at BECC

03265 Corlett, Leslie 5/1/2012 72085 1.25

updated supplemental agreement, printed & organized exhibits & supp agreements for Blair

03265 Corlett, Leslie 5/16/2012 72085 .25

review of Blair's letter to Grills from Field Scope Review

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/3/2012 72085 .75

detail for Blair for handicap ramps

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/23/2012 72085 .25

handicap detail ramp changes per Lance Taylor

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/24/2012 72085 .75

altering sheet per changes from Blair

03265 Corlett, Leslie 7/30/2012 72085 .50

looking for RPC traffic counts, sorting thru clearzone guidance on residential streets & acceptable clear zone width

03276 Perry, Blair 7/27/2011 72085 .50

Driveway/ADA cross slope issue - discuss w/C Brady & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/1/2011 72085 .50

Driveway ADA cross slope issue - research FHW A & Access Board guidelines, coord. w/Greg Hansen & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/5/2011 72085 .25

Coord. ADA/driveway cross slope issue w/C Brady; ADA/driveway cross slope confirmation e-mail to C. Brady, others

03276 Perry, Blair 8/14/2011 72085 .50

Correction from 8/10 - Coord. driveway ADA cross slopes w/City & ALDOT; Addl easements-discuss addl easements, required 
donation language w/C Brady, B W isener & ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 8/17/2011 72085 .75

ADA Driveway cross slope issue-discuss w/ALDOT & City; Missing items from plans-brick paver qty takeoff, retaining wall, ramps & 
sidewalk on Merryvale

03276 Perry, Blair 8/18/2011 72085 .50

Brief PIC on ADA driveway cross slope issue; coord. w/City & Greg Hansen on missing retaining wall on Merryvale

03276 Perry, Blair 8/19/2011 72085 2.75

ADA ramp research & coord. w/City; Coord. Ty C C&G areas & other addl pay items needed w/City; Addl pay items-pay item 
research, quantity takeoff and letter to Grills requesting pricing, coord. w/C Brady; Merryvale retaining wall-coord. w/C Brady; coord.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/22/2011 72085 1.50

Merryvale retaining wall-field review to look at retaining wall location; letter to Grills re pricing for additional pay items needed

03276 Perry, Blair 8/23/2011 72085 2.25

Merryvale retaining wall-talk to C Brady about ret wall, need for guardrail; memo re guardrail on Merryvale at ret wall; quantity 
takeoff & letter to Grills re additional pay items needed; talk to Marty Burford at BECC about asphalt drive buildups

03276 Perry, Blair 8/24/2011 72085 1.25

Page 17 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Send C Brady ALDOT ROW  donation letter; Merryvale ret wall-misc. corr; review & coord. add' ramp details w/G Hansen; talk to 
Grills about pricing for addl pay items; coord. Civil Ctr & asphalt drives w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 8/25/2011 72085 .50

Add driveway detail & HC ramp details to plans; Addl pay items-coord. pricing for addl pay items

03276 Perry, Blair 8/28/2011 72085 .25

Correction from 8/25 - Copy plans for Jeff. Co. Environmental Svcs for City

03276 Perry, Blair 9/8/2011 72085 .75

Talk to R Swann at Grills about pricing for additional pay items & Merryvale retaining wall; Corrd. Merryvale ret wall w/TPZ; 
Calculate qtys for concrete driveway overruns

03276 Perry, Blair 9/9/2011 72085 .75

Talk to ALDOT about design of Merryvale retaining wall; calculate qtys for concrete driveway overruns

03276 Perry, Blair 9/12/2011 72085 1.00

Additional concrete drive removal and required qtys; calculate other overruns; stationing problem on W illoughby; aggregate 
surfacing qtys (overrun); discuss missing Merryvale retaining wall w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 9/13/2011 72085 2.25

Overrun quantity calculations & spreadsheet (concrete driveways, retaining wall, agg surfacing, etc.)

03276 Perry, Blair 9/18/2011 72085 -.25

Correction from 9/9

03276 Perry, Blair 9/21/2011 72085 .25

Coord. Merryvale missing retaining wall w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 10/4/2011 72085 2.00

Change Request #1 letter (Merryvale retaining wall, handrailing, landscaping); coord. Change Request #1 w/C Brady, G Hansen

03276 Perry, Blair 10/6/2011 72085 .25

Discuss Change Request #1 & Merryvale Retaining wall w/ALDOT & City in Progress meeting

03276 Perry, Blair 10/12/2011 72085 .25

Review Grills pricing for Change Request #1 & coord. w/Grills

03276 Perry, Blair 10/13/2011 72085 .50

Coord. pricing for Change Request #1 w/Rick Swann at Grills; Email & coord. need for channelizing drums w/ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 10/17/2011 72085 .50

Review & update overruns/underruns for items left out of project; coord. Change Request #1 w/Grills & City

03276 Perry, Blair 10/20/2011 72085 .25

Coord. flasher on Vestaview Ln w/C Brady; coord. Merryvale retaining wall w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 10/26/2011 72085 .50

Research ADA & FHW A guidelines on HC ramps & crosswalks, typical detail sketch for HC ramps & crosswalks; Review Hansen 
CAD files; Coord. HC ramps & crosswalks w/City

03276 Perry, Blair 11/11/2011 72085 .75

Calculate/update overruns

03276 Perry, Blair 11/14/2011 72085 1.25

Review existing overruns; calculate additional overruns; update overrun/underrun report

03276 Perry, Blair 11/16/2011 72085 1.50

Change Request #1 - Review pricing information from Grills, prepare letter to ALDOT, prepare summary spreadsheet of pay items, 
quantities & costs, compile Change Request 1 package to send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 11/18/2011 72085 .25

Finalize Change Request #1 information & send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 11/28/2011 72085 .25

Review overruns w/DP at ALDOT, revise overrun spreadsheet

03276 Perry, Blair 11/29/2011 72085 .25

Talk to C Brady about pay item & ALDOT Std Dwg for Merryvale retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 12/7/2011 72085 2.25

Merryvale retaining wall-research backfill specs & pay item behind wall & send to G Hansen; Talk to G Brown, D Reid & A Dunn at 
ALDOT about Change Request work, pay items & prices; Phone memo re conv. w/ALDOT about Change Request wrok

03276 Perry, Blair 12/8/2011 72085 1.00

Merryvale retaining wall - Talk to C Brady about ALDOT comments on Change Request 1, landscaping vs. handrailing; Coord. 
Change Request w/D Key; talk to C Brady about HC ramps on Vestaview/Canyon; Coord. planing measurements at HC ramps w D 
Key

03276 Perry, Blair 12/9/2011 72085 .75

Coord. pay items/payment for JBs on Vestaview w/C Brady, D Key, ALDOT; review plans & specs

03276 Perry, Blair 12/13/2011 72085 .25

Coordinate junction boxes for SRTS project w/ALDOT & City; Coord. Change Request #1 w/City & Contractor

Page 18 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

03276 Perry, Blair 12/14/2011 72085 1.00

Talk to R Swann at Grills about need for uncl. exc. for driveway reconstruction, force account work, Change Request 1; Talk to C 
Brady about Change Request, Merryvale retaining wall, ALDOT options for ret wall, force account

03276 Perry, Blair 12/16/2011 72085 .50

Talk to C Brady about Change Request & Merryvale retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 12/19/2011 72085 .25

Coord. Change Request 1 draft letter for City, letter to ALDOT w/D Key

03276 Perry, Blair 1/3/2012 72085 .75

Handicap ramps-coord. w/C Brady, G Hansen & ALDOT; Review R.E. Grills letter re time extension & uncl. exc. for drives

03276 Perry, Blair 1/5/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate meeting about HC ramps on Canyon w/ALDOT & City

03276 Perry, Blair 1/6/2012 72085 .50

Coord. handicap ramp issue w/C Brady & G Hanson & ALDOT, research diagonal handicap ramps

03276 Perry, Blair 1/9/2012 72085 .50

Draft letter re items to remove from Change Request 1 for City; Coord. Change Request, review of Grills time ext & uncl letter 
w/JDK

03276 Perry, Blair 1/10/2012 72085 .50

Handicap ramps-prepare for meeting with ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/11/2012 72085 3.50

Attend mtg w/ALDOT, FHW A & City to discuss curb ramps on Canyon Rd.; Site visit on Merryvale to look at plan revisions; Markup 
plan revisions on Merryvale to submit to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/12/2012 72085 1.00

Coordinate plan revisions on Merryvale w/ALDOT & City; Look at plan revisions needed on Merryvale Rd.; send marked up plans & 
summary of Merryvale Plan revisions to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 1/13/2012 72085 1.25

Coord. new inlet on Merryvale w/JDK; Merryvale retaining wall-quantity takeoffs, coordinate/negotiate w/Grills on unit price; Talk to 
Grills about time extension request for drives, Change Request #1, Merryvale retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 1/15/2012 72085 2.25

Correction from 1/10-Canyon curb ramps-review information from Greg Hansen, research on curb ramps, memo to ALDOT on how 
Canyon curb ramps got changed in field, coord. ALDOT mtg w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 1/15/2012 72085 .50

Meeting notes from 1/11 meeting with ALDOT, City & FHW A on curb ramps on Canyon

03276 Perry, Blair 1/16/2012 72085 .25

Coord. plan revisions on Merryvale, Contractor driveway time extension request, other misc. CE&I w/JDK

03276 Perry, Blair 1/17/2012 72085 .50

Merryvale valley gutter/curb & gutter revisions-review w/JDK, site visit to review

03276 Perry, Blair 1/18/2012 72085 .75

Look at curb & gutter vs. valley gutter changes & AT&T box conflict on Merryvale w/C Brady; Coord. plan revisions w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 1/20/2012 72085 .25

Discuss/evaluate Grills time extension request for driveways, add'l information needed from ALDOT;Progress meeting-discuss 
issue w/curb ramps w/ALDOT & City

03276 Perry, Blair 1/23/2012 72085 .25

Merryvale retaining wall-coord. retaining wall pay items w/G Hansen

03276 Perry, Blair 1/24/2012 72085 1.00

Merryvale retaining wall-coord. pay items & ALDOT specs for stone w/G Hansen; Time extension request-review add'l info from 
Grills, coord. w/City & Grills; Curb ramps removal-coord. w/Grills

03276 Perry, Blair 1/26/2012 72085 1.25

Merryvale retaining wall-print, review plans for City & provide City comments. Coord. Merryvale retaining wall w/C Brady & G 
Hansen.

03276 Perry, Blair 1/30/2012 72085 .50

Merryvale Retaining W all-Coord. comments/revisions on retaining wall plans w/ C Brady.  Merryvale Plan Revisions-Coord. 
Merryvale plan revisions, pay items needed, etc. w/ALDOT & C Brady. Coord. future inspection w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 2/1/2012 72085 .25

Merryvale plan/drainage revisions-Coordinate EOP shots & drainage revisions w/JDK

03276 Perry, Blair 2/2/2012 72085 .25

Coord. curb ramps issue & Merryvale retainign wall w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 2/3/2012 72085 .50

Merryvale retaining wall-review retaining wall plans & provide comments to C Brady. Coord. w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 2/8/2012 72085 1.00

Page 19 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Driveway time extension & uncl. exc. request-review information from Grills, letter to City re time extension & uncl. exc, discuss 
time extension w/Grills, review/revise estimated qtys. for uncl. exc.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/9/2012 72085 .25

Merryvale retaining wall-review revised wall drawings & coord. w/City

03276 Perry, Blair 2/10/2012 72085 .25

Coord. AT&T easement on Merryvale at W indward w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/13/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate project w/C Brady - Merryvale plan revisions, Merryvale retaining wall, Post Oak plan revisions, curb ramps, additional 
CE&I, etc.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/14/2012 72085 1.50

Proj. Mgmt.-review CE&I fees spent to date vs. budget, estimate fees needed to complete project. Meet w/City to review CE&I fees, 
budget, est. amount to complete, discuss additional FT CE&I.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/15/2012 72085 .75

Coord. EOP shots on Merryvale (looking for sags) w/LBC. Proj. Mgmt-review/coord. sub invoice w/Greg Hansen

03276 Perry, Blair 2/16/2012 72085 .75

Project Management-Coord. sub invoice & Merryvale retaining wall w/Greg Hansen

03276 Perry, Blair 2/17/2012 72085 1.25

Additional driveways-review letter to City re: Grills time extension request, unclassified excavation.  Review additional driveways & 
estimated qty for uncl. exc.  Coord. add'l driveways w/J Hughes.

03276 Perry, Blair 2/20/2012 72085 .50

Coord. Change Request #1, Merryvale plan revisions, Merryvale retaining wall w/ALDOT.  Coord. invoices & add'l CE&I proposal 
w/Greg Hansen.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/1/2012 72085 1.50

Talk to C. Brady about STPBH overruns, Merryvale plan revisions, additional CN & CE&I funding needed, Merryvale retaining wall.
Review/revise overrun spreadsheet.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/5/2012 72085 .50

Review overruns, plan revisions, monthly estimates, time charges w/D. Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/6/2012 72085 5.75

Field review plan revisions needed on Merryvale Rd.  Site visit to look at drainage revisions needed at Merryvale Sta. 10+30. Draft 
letter for City on Merryvale plan revisions.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/7/2012 72085 4.75

Coord. profiles needed for additional driveways to be removed and reconstructed. Merryvale Plan Revisions-draft letter for C. 
Brady, mark up plans showing revisions, cost estimate for revisions, deliver copies to C. Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 3/8/2012 72085 .25

Coord. Merryvale plan revisions w/C. Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/9/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate driveway profiles w/JDK & LBC.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/11/2012 72085 .25

Timesheet correction from 3/9 - Driveway profiles & quantities for additional driveways to provide 2%  max cross slope

03276 Perry, Blair 3/12/2012 72085 .25

Additional driveway profiles & quantities to provide 2%  max cross slope. Coord. Merryvale Rd plan revisions & Change Request #1 
w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/13/2012 72085 3.50

Additional driveway profiles & quantities (2%  cross slope issue). Site visit on Merryvale to look at plan revisions w/ALDOT.  Review 
overruns w/ALDOT. Meet w/C. Brady & Grills to review Merryvale plan revisions. Discuss Merryvale plan revisions w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/14/2012 72085 2.25

Additional driveway profiles & qtys. Request pricing for new pay items from Grills, coord. w/Grills. Review overruns w/JDK. Coord. 
w/C. Brady. Coord. Merryvale plan revisions, Change Request #1, curb ramps w/ALDOT. Coord. Merryvale ret wall x-sections w/C

03276 Perry, Blair 3/15/2012 72085 2.50

W ork on quantities & profiles for additional driveways to provide 2%  cross slope. Talk to R Swann at Grills re delays, Change 
Request #1, delays. Curb ramps replacement-field review on Canyon to mark & measure curb ramps to be replaced.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/16/2012 72085 2.75

Curb ramp removals & reconstruction-site visit on Canyon Rd. to measure removal and reconstruction qtys & mark new ramp 
locations.  Quantities for curb ramp removal & reconstruction.  Coord. curb ramp removal & reconstruction w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/19/2012 72085 1.50

Review/revise additional driveway removal and reconstruction qtys, sketches & profiles. Look at drainage at Merryvale and Post 
Oak.  Review valley gutter to S-inlet transition detail and forward to ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/20/2012 72085 3.50

Print/file misc. correspondence(Merryvale gutter change, Change Request #1, curb ramps). Add'l driveway quantities & package 
for ALDOT. Merryvale drainage Sta. 6+80-review & coord. w/ALDOT. Send add'l drive info to ALDOT. Revise & resubmit Change 
Request

Page 20 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

03276 Perry, Blair 3/26/2012 72085 .25

Follow up w/ALDOT on junction box locations, retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 3/28/2012 72085 .25

Site visit-Merryvale

03276 Perry, Blair 3/29/2012 72085 .50

Additional driveway quantities-coord. w/ALDOT & City; review/respond to FHW A questions about driveway quantities.

03276 Perry, Blair 3/30/2012 72085 .75

Expense report. Driveway quantities for additional driveways on W illoughby Rd. Progress meeting agenda. Progress meeting to 
discuss Change Request 1, driveways, time extension, other issues

03276 Perry, Blair 3/31/2012 72085 .50

Timesheet correction from 3/26-Coordinate Merryvale retaining wall, drainage, additional driveways w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/1/2012 72085 -4.00

Reclass to 28542.00-W ork on additional driveway quantities, sketches, profiles coordination, etc. on March 7,9,11,13,14,15,19,20

03276 Perry, Blair 4/2/2012 72085 .25

Revise drainage layout on Merryvale at Post Oak Road based on field observations.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/3/2012 72085 .25

Meeting w/G Brown & A Dunn at ALDOT to discuss Change Request 1, driveways, ramps, misc.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/4/2012 72085 .50

Update C Brady on ramp issue, ramp replacement & additional driveways. Coordinate ramps w/ALDOT, City & BECC. Coordinate 
add'l driveways on Merryvale w/Mark, City.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/5/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate detailed drawings for ramps w/LBC.  Coordinate ramps w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/6/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate additional driveways on Merryvale w/C Brady, LBC & JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/9/2012 72085 .25

Driveway profiles-coordinate questions about drive profiles w/LBC

03276 Perry, Blair 4/10/2012 72085 .50

Review Merryvale driveway profiles w/LBC & JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/16/2012 72085 1.25

Ramp/PROW AG issue-talk to Geneva Brown at ALDOT about ramps/PROW AG issues, communicate w/C Brady. Update 
overruns/underruns

03276 Perry, Blair 4/17/2012 72085 1.75

Review to date quantities vs. plan quantities, update overruns/underruns.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/18/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate Merryvale work, ramp issue w/C Brady

03276 Perry, Blair 4/19/2012 72085 .25

Talk to Contractor about monthly estimate & current ADA issues

03276 Perry, Blair 4/23/2012 72085 .75

Coord project w/City Engineer. Prepare project cost summary for City Council.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/24/2012 72085 .50

Revise supplemental agreement #1. Coord. w/ALDOT on ramp issues & extension of sidewalk to US 31.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/25/2012 72085 1.00

Coordinate drainage revisions at Merryvale & Post Oak Rd w/C Brady & JDK. Ramp issue-talk to Geneva Brown to get update.
Merryvale sidewalk extension-talk to G Brown at ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 4/26/2012 72085 1.50

Merryvale sidewalk extension-talk to ALDOT about environmental document, send information to G Brown at ALDOT. Merryvale 
drainage revisions coord. Talk to C. Brady re ramps, other issues

03276 Perry, Blair 4/27/2012 72085 .25

Project coordination w/ALDOT & City.

03276 Perry, Blair 4/29/2012 72085 -.25

Correction from 4/24

03276 Perry, Blair 4/30/2012 72085 1.00

Project management - review April labor & expenses; invoicing. Talk to D Pendley at ALDOT about overruns. Prepare 
Supplemental Agreement #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/1/2012 72085 .75

Project management-prepare Supplemental CEI Agreement. Misc. project coordination.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/7/2012 72085 2.00

ADA/Accessibility Issues-field review w/ALDOT to look at cross slopes, driveways, ramps on Merryvale

03276 Perry, Blair 5/8/2012 72085 .25

Page 21 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

ADA/accessibility ramps issue-research, talk to ALDOT accessibility consultant

03276 Perry, Blair 5/9/2012 72085 1.50

ADA/Accessibility Issues-research curb ramps in 2010 & 1991 ADA & 2004 ADAAG. Meeting notes from field review w/ALDOT on 
5/7.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/10/2012 72085 2.25

Meet w/Contractor in field to discuss ALDOT direction on Merryvale handicap ramps. ADA/Accessibility scoping field review 
w/ALDOT on Merryvale Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/11/2012 72085 2.00

ADA/Accessibility scoping field review w/ALDOT on Vestaview/Canyon Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/13/2012 72085 -.75

Correction from 5/9

03276 Perry, Blair 5/14/2012 72085 .25

Misc. project coordination.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/15/2012 72085 .25

Coordinate revised Change Request #1 w/JDK, City & W hisenant.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/16/2012 72085 1.75

Memo to Grills about results of ALDOT ADA/accessibility scoping review and work that needs to be completed. Coord. ramp details 
w/ALDOT. Proj Mgmt-Process CE&I Suppl. Agreement #1.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/18/2012 72085 .25

Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about Supplemental Agreements & contractor time extension request & uncl. exc. request for add'l 
driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/21/2012 72085 .25

Coord. Change Request/Supplemental Agreement #1 & time extension request for add'l driveways w/D Peneley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/22/2012 72085 .75

Review Grills letter re ramp price & time ext request for ramps. Coord. info needed for add'l driveway time ext w/Grills & ALDOT. 
Coord. info needed for revised driveway conc unit price w/ALDOT & Grills. Coord. Merryvale ret wall w/City. Talk to D Noone

03276 Perry, Blair 5/23/2012 72085 1.75

Review/print/file corr re time ext requests. Coord. ramp price & time ext requests, Change Request #1, addl driveway uncl exc 
w/ALDOT & City. Review Merryvale wall dwgs w/City. Look at ramp at Merryvale & Old Mont Hwy in field w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/24/2012 72085 1.00

Update overruns/underruns.  Coord. info needed from Contractor on ramp change request w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 5/25/2012 72085 1.00

Project Management-Prepare and send out amendment to BECC agreement for CE&I & materials testing

03276 Perry, Blair 5/29/2012 72085 .75

Revise Change Request #1, draft City concurrence letter & send to City.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/12/2012 72085 1.50

Merryvale Rd. sidewalk extension-review ALDOT crosswalk, ramp, sidewalk revisions, revise overruns, coord. w/field inspector. 
Coord. w/Grills on time extension requests, add'l work, price for ramps, uncl exc for addl driveways; Send Grills info on uncl ex

03276 Perry, Blair 6/13/2012 72085 .50

Coordinate project, Merryvale retaining wall drawings w/C Brady at City. Coord. several issues/questions w/ G Brown at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/18/2012 72085 1.75

Meeting w/Contractor on site to review ramps on Merryvale, coordinate project w/Contractor.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/19/2012 72085 .25

Coord. misc. issues w/C. Brady & D Key.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/21/2012 72085 1.00

Meet w/G Brown at ALDOT to discuss several outstanding issues (dwg for HC ramps, Contractor Change Requests, labor 
compliance reviews, Merryvale retaining wall dwgs, Change Request #1). Meet w/C Brady at City about Change Request #1, 
Merryvale ret wall dw

03276 Perry, Blair 6/25/2012 72085 .25

Coord. Merryvale retaining wall dwgs. w/C. Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/26/2012 72084 .25

Coordinate misc. outstanding issues (Merryvale wall drawings, W illoughby easements, Change Requests, etc.) w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/27/2012 72084 1.00

Site visit-mark revised ramp locations on Merryvale & coordinate ramps w/Contractor. Merryvale @  US 31 sidewalk revisions-look 
at & measure overrun quantities. Coord. valley gutter replacements on Canyon w/City.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/28/2012 72084 .25

Letter to ALDOT re replacement of broken conc. gutter on Vestaview/Canyon.

03276 Perry, Blair 6/29/2012 72084 1.00

Vestaview/Canyon gutter replacement-coord. locations & qtys w/R Saenz, letter to ALDOT. Coord. outstanding Change Requests, 
time extension requests, issues w/ALDOT.

Page 22 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

03276 Perry, Blair 7/1/2012 72084 .25

Correction from 6/25 - Review field books/quantities, coordinate project w/Ronnie Saenz (BECC), update overruns/underruns

03276 Perry, Blair 7/2/2012 72084 3.00

Merryvale retaining wall-review retaining wall plans & send comments to C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/3/2012 72084 .25

Coordinate misc. outstanding issues w/C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/5/2012 72084 .50

Handicap ramp detail-review/revise detail & send to ALDOT

03276 Perry, Blair 7/9/2012 72084 .25

Coord. w/Contractor on add'l information needed re time ext requests, uncl exc for driveways, HC ramp price, updated schedule of 
operations

03276 Perry, Blair 7/11/2012 72084 .50

Coordinate w/D Pendley at ALDOT on time extensions, C-20s, change requests. Review Change Request letters from City & 
forward to ALDOT.  Coordinate ramp reconstruction w/Inspector.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/15/2012 72084 .50

Timesheet correction for 7/10 - Talk to C Brady at City about change requests, Merryvale retaining wall drawings, Change 
Requests, other issues.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/16/2012 72084 1.00

Merryvale retaining wall-review revised retaining wall drawings for City, send comments to C Brady.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/19/2012 72084 1.00

Merryvale retaining wall-letter to ALDOT transmitting retaining wall drawings, cost estimate for retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 7/20/2012 72084 1.00

Merryvale retaining wall-compile letter, drawings & cost estimate for Merryvale retaining wall and take to ALDOT, coordinate with 
ALDOT staff. Research clear zone for retaining wall and send information to ALDOT & City.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/26/2012 72084 1.25

Talk to Contractor Supt. about ramp layout on Merryvale. Talk to Contractor about information needed for Change Requests, time 
extension request, ramp issues, etc. Send Merryvale retaining wall drawings to Contractor.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/30/2012 72084 .50

Coord. Merryvale ramp at Old Montgomery Hwy w/Inspector, City & Contractor. Coord. information for Change Requests 
w/Contractor.  Proj. Mgmt-review July labor & expense reports, complete ALDOT SACP form.

03276 Perry, Blair 7/31/2012 72084 .25

Coordinate project w/PIC. Review/revise handicap ramp detail & send to ALDOT. Scheduling progress meeting.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/2/2012 72084 .25

Review/file misc. project correspondence. Coord. contract time & liquidated damages w/D Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/6/2012 72084 .25

Talk to C. Brady about Change Requests, ramp replacement on Canyon Rd, AT&T conflict on Merryvale Rd, easements on 
W illoughby Rd, Merryvale retaining wall

03276 Perry, Blair 8/7/2012 72084 1.25

Review Project Diary and June quantities in field book. Coord. w/Inspector. Prepare agenda for Progress Mtg. Progress Mtg. 
w/Grills, ALDOT & City. Coord. time charges w/JDK. Site visit to look at ALDOT changes at Merryvale & US 31.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/8/2012 72084 .50

Coordinate time charges, time extensions, controlling item of work w/ALDOT.  Coordinate bad headwalls w/ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/9/2012 72084 .75

Talk to D Pendley about bad headwalls. Send drawings/information for ramp & crosswalk evisions at Merryvale & US-31 to 
Contractor, others.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/12/2012 70084 .75

Correction from 8/9 - Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about time charges, controlling item(s) of work, information needed for Change 
Requests

03276 Perry, Blair 8/13/2012 70084 .25

Review letter from Grills re additional time & unclassified excacation for additional driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/16/2012 70084 1.50

Coord. outstanding items w/ALDOT. Review letter from Grills re time extension for add'l driveways. Mtg. w/Rick Swann w/Grills re 
time extension, time charges, add'l driveways, HC. Talk to D. Pendley at ALDOT about info needed minor str. conc., uncl. exc.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/21/2012 70084 .75

Talk to D Pendley & A Dunn at ALDOT about minor structure concrete cost & qty and uncl. exc. for add'l driveways. Site visit to 
measure steps (minor str. conc.) on Canyon Rd.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/22/2012 70084 3.00

Site visit-Look at ramp/sidewalk layout at Merryvale & Old Montgomery Hwy, Canyon Rd. at Beverly Hills Dr and Canyon at no-
name circle w/ALDOT & City. Request suppl. drawing for Merryvale @  OMH from ALDOT.  Coord. Canyon @  Beverly Hills ramp 
layout w/Cont

03276 Perry, Blair 8/23/2012 70084 .75

Page 23 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Diary entries for 8/21 & 8/22 (Canyon ramps, Old Montgomery Hwy ramp/SW  layout). Meet w/David Nooney w/Grills to discuss 
contract time, Change Requests, plan issues, other issues.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/29/2012 70084 1.25

Coord. ADA Scoping review report w/A Dunn at ALDOT. Coord. sod & sidewalk issues at 1833 Merryvale w/City & PIC.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/30/2012 70084 2.50

Update overruns.  Review/revise C-20s.  Coord. w/ALDOT on time charges. Letter to Contractor re work to be completed & 
controlling work.

03276 Perry, Blair 8/31/2012 70084 1.00

Coordinate review of driveway time extension request w/Project Inspector & ALDOT. Coordinate funding, ADA issues, ramps, 
Merryvale retaining wall/water main potholing, other issues w/C Brady at City.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/10/2012 70084 .50

Review/file misc. project correspondence. Review driveway time extension information w/JDK.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/11/2012 70084 .75

Driveway time extension request analysis. Coordinate project w/City (Merryvale Rd retaining wall, work at US 31, corrective sod 
work at 1833 Merryvale Rd.). Talk to R. Swann at Grills re work at US 31, driveway time ext. request, drawings needed. Request

03276 Perry, Blair 9/12/2012 70084 2.00

Review/compile information re additional driveway time extension request.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/13/2012 70084 2.00

Compile information re addl driveway time extension, letter to ALDOT. Review draft ADA Scoping review reports, send C Brady 
comments, coord. w/C Brady. Review Grills letter re Merryvale sidewalk time ext request.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/14/2012 70084 1.50

Review supplemental drawing for Merryvale/Old Montgomery Hwy intersection from ALDOT, coord. add'l info needed w/ALDOT. 
Mtg. w/City & Contractor to discuss ADA issues, time extension request, Supplemental Agreements, Merryvale retaining wall, 
sidewalk cro

03276 Perry, Blair 9/17/2012 70084 .75

Coord. R. E. Grills time extension request, time charges, ADA issues w/D Pendley at ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/18/2012 70084 .75

Coord. time extensions for addl driveways w/D Pendley at ALDOT. Revise driveway time extension information.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/19/2012 70084 .50

Additional driveway time extension - Coord. w/D Pendley at ALDOT & City, make revisions & re-send to City. Qtys. for Minor 
Structure Concrete.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/20/2012 70084 1.25

Calculate minor structure conc. qty needed for steps on Canyon Rd. Review qtys. for additional driveways; costs for additional 
driveways.  Update overruns.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/21/2012 70084 1.25

Coordinate time extension calculation, C-20s, driveway time extension, liquidated damages w/D Pendley at ALDOT.  Compile Uncl 
Exc. qtys for add'l driveways.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/24/2012 70084 .25

Coordinate revisions to C-20s, time extensions w/JDK & ALDOT.

03276 Perry, Blair 9/25/2012 70084 .50

Unclassified excavation qtys for add'l driveways, minor structure concrete quantities to for ALDOT (Change Request #2). Coord. 
revisions to C-20s w/JDK.

03315 Ashley, Theresa 9/13/2012 67080 .75

Daily Log Prep- copying

04059 Humphrey, Joseph 9/19/2012 97084 .25

Coordinating with BW W B to get water main located for Merryvale retaining wall

04265 Key, John 1/9/2012 97088 1.00

Evaluate change order justification

04265 Key, John 2/1/2012 97088 2.50

GPS on Merryvale

04265 Key, John 3/9/2012 97088 2.25

Take level shots for additional driveways

04265 Key, John 3/11/2012 97088 -2.25

Reallocated per Blair Perry

04265 Key, John 4/24/2012 97088 .50

Revisions to change request and summmary sheet.

04265 Key, John 4/25/2012 97088 2.00

04265 Key, John 8/30/2012 97088 2.00

Review and revise C-20 concerning vestavia ramps

04265 Key, John 9/7/2012 97088 1.00

Page 24 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Date

Labor

Code

Total

Hours

Review data submitted by Grills for the additional time requested due to the added driveways.

04265 Key, John 9/11/2012 97088 2.00

Driveway Review for requested time

04265 Key, John 9/12/2012 97088 2.00

Grills Driveway Review with Blair

04265 Key, John 9/13/2012 97088 1.50

Driveway Review for requested time and deliver documents to ALDOT

04265 Key, John 9/24/2012 97088 4.00

Back check Daily with C-20 form day 1

04265 Key, John 9/25/2012 97088 2.00

Meeting with ALDOT

Total for 08 187.50

Page 25 of 27v6.1.600 (SW ILS) -  Cost, Project Budgeting

28543.00 City of Vestavia Hills - STPBH CN10 908 Tuesday, October 09, 2012 1:02:12 PMJob-to-Date through 10/31/2012



Ordinance Number 2315-A 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2315-A 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3(c) OF ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2315 REGARDING ISSUE FEES 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Section 3(c) of Ordinance Number 2315, adopted and approved on November 

23, 2009, is hereby amended in its entirety as follows: 

 
“SECTION 3. License term.  

The license term and the minimum amount for a business 

license are, as follows: 

(a) Issue Fee. For each license issued there shall be an issue fee of 

twelve dollars ($12.00) collected and it shall be collected in the 

same manner as the license tax.” 

 
SECTION 25. Effective date.  

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and following 

publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

SECTION 26. Severability.  

The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 

shall be declared unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, then such ruling 

shall not affect any other paragraphs and sections, since the same would have been 

enacted by the municipality council without the incorporation of any such 

unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 



Ordinance Number 2315-A 
Page 2 

 
SECTION 27. Repealer.  

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED, this the 5th day of 

November, 2012. 

 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2315-A is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 5th day of November, 2012, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4354 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR MAGIC CITY DANCE ENTERPRISES, LLC 
D/B/S MAGIC CITY BALLROOM; MICHAEL 
JEFFREY FOWLER, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approves the alcohol license for Magic City Dance Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Magic City 

Ballroom, located at 1425 Montgomery Highway, Suite 81, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for 

the on-premise sale of 160 - Special Retail - More than 30 days; Michael Jeffrey Fowler, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 













Resolution Number 4366 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4366 

 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 2377 AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF A SAFETY 
COORDINATOR FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS.  

 
 WHEREAS, on December 2, 1991, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama adopted and approved Resolution Number 2377 to propose the appointment of a safety 

coordinator and to recognize the importance of safety; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills recognize the 

importance of safety in the workplace and wish to reaffirm its commitment to safety 

consciousness; and 

 WHEREAS, in a renewed partnership with Municipal Workers Compensation Fund, the 

City is encouraged to appoint a Safety Coordinator; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  That the Mayor and City Council encourage the development of an updated and 

coordinated Workplace Safety Program; and   

2. That the City Manager shall appoint a Safety Coordinator with the responsibility of 

implementing an effective safety program for all employees of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

3. This Resolution Number 4366 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012.   

 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca H. Leavings, 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number4360  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4360 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE NATIONAL BANK OF 
COMMERCE. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the National Bank of Commerce be, and hereby is, designated as the 

depository of the City of Vestavia Hills Capital Projects Reserve Account and Money 

Market Reserve Account, and that the officers and employees of said City named herein 

below are hereby authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for the purpose of 

deposit and collection, in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and other like 

obligations issued and drawn to and owned by said City; and it is further resolved that 

endorsement for deposit and collection may be by the written or stamped endorsement of 

the City without designation of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two (2) of the following, whether said checks are 

payable to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the 

order of any signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation 

officer, in either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to 

the authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  



Resolution Number4360  
Page 2 

  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 



Resolution Number4360  
Page 3 

  
corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 

holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4360 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number4360  
Page 4 

  
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



Resolution Number4361  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4361 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE PINNACLE BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Pinnacle Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of the 

City of Vestavia Hills Library Account, and that the officers and employees of said City 

named herein below are hereby authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for the 

purpose of deposit and collection, in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and other 

like obligations issued and drawn to and owned by said City; and it is further resolved 

that endorsement for deposit and collection may be by the written or stamped 

endorsement of the City without designation of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two (2) of the following, whether said checks are 

payable to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the 

order of any signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation 

officer, in either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to 

the authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  

 
 



Resolution Number4361  
Page 2 

  
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 

corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 



Resolution Number4361  
Page 3 

  
holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4361 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number4361  
Page 4 

  
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



Resolution Number4362  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4362 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE REGIONS BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Regions Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of the 

City of Vestavia Hills Court Bond Account, and that the officers and employees of said 

City named herein below are hereby authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for 

the purpose of deposit and collection, in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and 

other like obligations issued and drawn to and owned by said City; and it is further 

resolved that endorsement for deposit and collection may be by the written or stamped 

endorsement of the City without designation of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any one (1) of the following, whether said checks are payable 

to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the order of any 

signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation officer, in 

either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to the 

authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  

 
 



Resolution Number4362  
Page 2 

  
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Nancy Chadbourne 
Court Clerk/Magistrate 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Margean Cummings 
Magistrate 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melanie Higgins 
Court Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number4362  
Page 3 

  
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 

corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 

holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4362 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 



Resolution Number4362  
Page 4 

  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



Resolution Number4363  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4363 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE REGIONS BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Regions Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of the 

City of Vestavia Hills Special Court Account, Pooled Cash and Payroll Account, and that 

the officers and employees of said City named herein below are hereby authorized to 

endorse, in the name of the City, for the purpose of deposit and collection, in and with 

said bank, checks, drafts, notes and other like obligations issued and drawn to and owned 

by said City; and it is further resolved that endorsement for deposit and collection may be 

by the written or stamped endorsement of the City without designation of the party 

making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two (2) of the following, whether said checks are 

payable to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the 

order of any signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation 

officer, in either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to 

the authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  



Resolution Number4363  
Page 2 

  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 



Resolution Number4363  
Page 3 

  
corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 

holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4363 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number4363  
Page 4 

  
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



Resolution Number4364  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4364 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE SOUTHPOINT BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Southpoint Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of the 

City of Vestavia Hills Contractors Surety Account, Warrant Funds Account and the 

Library Capital Project Accout, and that the officers and employees of said City named 

herein below are hereby authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for the purpose of 

deposit and collection, in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and other like 

obligations issued and drawn to and owned by said City; and it is further resolved that 

endorsement for deposit and collection may be by the written or stamped endorsement of 

the City without designation of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two (2) of the following, whether said checks are 

payable to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the 

order of any signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation 

officer, in either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to 

the authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  



Resolution Number4364  
Page 2 

  
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 



Resolution Number4364  
Page 3 

  
corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 

holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4364 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number4364  
Page 4 

  
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



Resolution Number4365  
Page 1 

  
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4365 

 
 A RESOLUTION CHANGING THE CITY 

OFFICIALS DESIGNATED AND AUTHORIZED TO 
SIGN CHECKS AND DRAFTS FOR PAYMENTS 
FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS ACCOUNTS ON 
DEPOSIT IN THE WELLS FARGO BANK. 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the Wells Fargo Bank be, and hereby is, designated as the depository of 

the City of Vestavia Hills Transport Account, and that the officers and employees of said 

City named herein below are hereby authorized to endorse, in the name of the City, for 

the purpose of deposit and collection, in and with said bank, checks, drafts, notes and 

other like obligations issued and drawn to and owned by said City; and it is further 

resolved that endorsement for deposit and collection may be by the written or stamped 

endorsement of the City without designation of the party making the endorsement. 

 2.  That said bank be, and hereby is, authorized to pay out the funds of this 

corporation on deposit with it from time to time upon said depository and signed in the 

name of this corporation by any two (2) of the following, whether said checks are 

payable to cash, bearer, or the order of the corporation, or to any third party, or to the 

order of any signing or countersigning officer of the corporation or any other corporation 

officer, in either their individual or official capacity, without further inquiry or regard to 

the authority of said officer(s) and/or other person(s) or the use of said checks, drafts, and 

orders or the proceeds thereof;  

 
 



Resolution Number4365  
Page 2 

  
 
 
________________________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Melvin Turner, III 
Finance Director/City Treasurer 
 
 
 3.  That the said bank shall not be, in any manner whatsoever, responsible for or 

required to see the application of any of the funds of this corporation deposited with it, 

checked out, or borrowed from it, or secured by the discount of notes and other 

obligations to it as hereinbefore provided, and all such transactions shall be conclusively 

presumed to be legally binding upon this corporation. 

 4.  That Rebecca Leavings, the City Clerk of this municipality, shall file with the 

said bank a certified copy of this resolution under the corporate seal of this corporation 

and shall also file with the said bank a certified list of the persons at the present time 

holding offices of Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer in this 

corporation, and it shall be conclusively and presumed that the persons so certified as 



Resolution Number4365  
Page 3 

  
holding such offices continue respectively to hold the same until the said bank is 

otherwise notified in writing by the City of Vestavia Hills by duly authorized Resolution. 

 5.  Any and all resolutions heretofore approved and adopted by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in conflict with this Resolution Number 4365 are 

hereby rescinded. 

 6.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect and binding upon this 

municipality as of November 5, 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until it 

shall have been rescinded and written notice of such recession under the corporate seal 

have been delivered to said bank. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number4365  
Page 4 

  
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I the undersigned qualified Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution lawfully passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such 
Council held on the 5th day of November, 2012, and that such Resolution is of record in 
the Minute Book of the City at page __ thereof. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on this ___________ day of ____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
       Rebecca Leavings 
       City Clerk 
SEAL 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4368 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH TRANE U.S. INC. D/B/A 
TRANE FOR SERVICING OF THE HVAC SYSTEM AT THE 
LIBRARY IN THE FOREST 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into an agreement with Trane 

U.S. Inc. d/b/a Trane for servicing of the HVAC system at the Library in the 

Forest; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4368 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4368 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of 

November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 







































































Ordinance Number 2420 
Page 1 

 

 1

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
PURCHASING AND CLOSING OF THE SALE OF REAL ESTATE. 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420 is considered, approved, enacted and 

adopted on this the 5th day of November, 2012. 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, municipalities in Alabama have the legal authority to acquire real 

estate by purchase pursuant to Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) finds and determines that the purchase by 

the City of the hereinafter described real property (the “Property”) will promote the 

health, safety and general welfare of the City; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, reads as follows: 

 “Contracts entered into by a municipality shall be in writing, 
signed and executed in the name of the city or town by the officers 
authorized to make the same and by the party contracting.  In cases not 
otherwise directed by law or ordinance, such contracts shall be entered 
into and executed by the mayor in the name of the city or town and all 
obligations for the payment of money by the municipality, except for 
bonds and interest coupons, shall be attested by the clerk.  This section 
shall not be construed to cover purchases for the ordinary needs of the 
municipality;” and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. PROMOTION OF PUBLIC WELFARE:  The City Council (the “City 

Council”) of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (the “City”) 

finds and determines that the purchase by the City of the hereinafter described real 

property and improvements (the “Property”) will promote the health, safety and general 

welfare of the City. 



Ordinance Number 2420 
Page 2 

 

 2

 2. CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE:  The purchasing 

and closing of the sale of the Property shall be completed all in accordance with the 

terms, provisions, conditions and limitations of a written Real Estate Sales Contract (the 

“Contract”) negotiated by the City Manager and City Attorney and ultimately considered 

for acceptance and approval by the City Council at a regular or special public meeting of 

the City Council. 

 3. TERMS OF CONTRACT:  The written Real Estate Sales Contract shall 

specifically include, but not be limited to, the following terms, provisions, conditions and 

limitations: 

  A. SELLER:  Southpace Properties, Inc. 

  B. PURCHASER:  The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal 

corporation. 

  C. PURCHASE PRICE:  One Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand and 

No/100 Dollars ($1,150,000.00). 

  D. EARNEST MONEY:  None. 

  E. PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE:  In cash at closing. 

  F. THE PROPERTY: 

   1. Street Address:  In Vestavia Plaza on Montgomery 

Highway. 

   2. Located In:  Vestavia Hills Shopping Center. 

   3. Formerly Occupied By:  Food World Grocery Store. 

   4. Map of Property:  Attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

   5. Legal Description:  To be furnished by Seller upon 

completion of survey. 

   6. Curtilage:  The Property includes the present “Big Box” 

building and the real estate surrounding it as shown on the survey. 

  G. TITLE INSURANCE:  To be furnished by Seller at Seller’s expense. 

  H. SURVEY:  To be furnished by Seller at Seller’s expense. 

  I. USE OF PROPERTY:  Municipal Center, City Hall or other 

municipal purposes determined by the City.  Seller shall warrant to City in writing that 

the Property can be used for said purposes. 



Ordinance Number 2420 
Page 3 

 

 3

  J. CONDITION OF PROPERTY:  “As is” condition with all faults. 

  K. PARKING SPACES:  Seller shall provide perpetual cross parking 

easements to the extent that there shall be one parking space per 200 square feet in the 

building on the property. 

  L. CONVEYANCE:  By Warranty Deed. 

  M. BROKER COMMISSION:  None. 

  N. ATTORNEY FEES:  Each party shall pay its own attorney fees for 

legal services rendered in connection with the sale, purchase and closing. 

  O. RESURVEY:  To be completed by both Seller and Purchaser. 

 5. PREPARATION OF CONTRACT:   

  A. DATE:  After November 5, 2012. 

  B. SCRIVENER:  Attorney for Seller at Seller’s expense. 

 7. AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420:  If the City 

Council approves the Contract and it is executed and delivered by both Seller and 

Purchaser, then in such event Ordinance Number 2420 shall be amended by adding a 

copy of the duly executed Contract thereto. 

 8. UNANIMOUS CONSENT FOR CONSIDERATION OF AND 

ACTION ON APPROVAL, ADOPTION AND ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCE 

NUMBER 2420:  The City Council shall have a unanimous consent of Ordinance 

Number 2420, as amended, and consider its approval, adoption and enactment thereof at 

its regularly scheduled meeting on November 5, 2012 at 5:00 p.m.  If approved, the City 

Council may adopt and enact Ordinance Number 2420 if unanimous consent of those 

present is given for immediate consideration as authorized by Title 11-45-2(b), Code of 

Alabama 1975. 



Ordinance Number 2420 
Page 4 

 

 4

 9. POSTING OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420:  If the City Council 

approves, enacts and adopts Ordinance Number 2420, as amended, then in such event, 

said Ordinance shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City as required by 

Title 11-45-8(b)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 10. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2420:  Ordinance 

Number 2420 shall become effective five (5) days after posting in accordance with Title 

11-45-8(3), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 11. CLOSING DATE:  The Real Estate Sales Contract shall be closed after 

the effective date of Ordinance Number 2420 on a date mutually agreed upon by Seller 

and Purchaser. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, this the 5th day of 

November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2420 
Page 5 

 

 5

CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2420 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the ______ day of __________________, 2012 as same appears in the 
official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4367 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4367 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MATCHING FUNDS FOR ADECA 
GRANT ENTITLED LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND – 
LITTLE SHADES CREEK BRIDGE – I 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills proposes to have constructed recreational 

resources at McCallum Park for the health and well-being of the general public; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of a bridge to cross Little Shades Creek has been included 

in the master plan for McCallum Park (formerly Little Shades Creek Park) as part of Phase II 

development; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction of the proposed bridge will provide for expanded 

recreational opportunities by making an additional ten-plus acres accessible to park users; safety 

through improved emergency access within the park; and maintenance/continued development 

by enabling equipment to cross the creek; and  

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills has made a successful application to the Alabama 

Department of Economic and Community Affairs for FY 2011 Land and Water Conservation 

Fund (LWCF) grant assistance to develop a bridge across Little Shades Creek in McCallum 

Park; and 

 WHEREAS, funds requested through this Program for the proposed “Little Shades 

Creek Bridge – I” project are in the amount of $50,000, which is the maximum allowed request, 

and the LWCF program requires that the program sponsor match equally the funds requested; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Foundation has included the 

development of McCallum Park in the “Partners in Healthy Living” campaign and has 



Resolution Number 4367 
Page 2 

 
committed available funds for the cash match to fulfill LWCF program requirements and to 

provide for the completion of the project;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  That the City of Vestavia Hills holds in reserve $50,000, which is the required match for 

LWCF assistance; and 

2. That the City of Vestavia Hills understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations.   

3. This Resolution Number 4367 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of November, 2012.   

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca H. Leavings, 
City Clerk 















Resolution Number 4369 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4369 
 

A RESOLUTION ENJOINING THE COOPERATION OF THE 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK WITH STREET AND DRAINAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS TO EAST STREET. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills and the City of Mountain Brook, 

Alabama, work closely to promote the health, safety and welfare of both communities; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook has a large municipal and recreational 

complex located at the end of East Street, a Vestavia Hills street; and 

 WHEREAS, there have been longstanding concerns voiced by citizens of 

Vestavia Hills regarding the safety in the increased traffic count deriving from the 

Mountain Brook complexes as well as the calming and the speed of the flow of traffic on 

East Street; and 

 WHEREAS, through newly formed mutual partnerships, the leadership of both 

municipalities have expressed a desire to address these issues and concerns. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Council wishes to enjoin the Mayor and City Council of 

the City of Mountain Brook to allow the staff members of both Mountain 

Brook and Vestavia Hills to perform curb and drainage improvements on East 

Street with a later opportunity and resident approval, to also partner together 

for eventual sidewalk construction along said street; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4369 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 5th day of 

November, 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4369 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 


	2012_1105CC_A
	Resolution 4355
	Resolution 4356
	Resolution 4357
	Resolution 4358
	Resolution 4359
	Ordinance 2419
	2012_1022CC_M
	Resolution 4351
	Resolution 4353

	Ordinance 2315A
	Resolution 4354
	Resolution 4366
	Resolution 4360
	Resolution 4361
	Resolution 4362
	Resolution 4363
	Resolution 4364
	Resolution 4365
	Resolution 4368
	Ordinance 2420

	Resolution 4367
	Resolution 4369




